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Company Profile

Natural Gas Distribution
Natural gas distribution is AGL Resources’ principal line
of business. Through its gas distribution subsidiaries, AGL
Resources is recognized as the second largest natural
gas-only distributor in the United States. Together, these
companies serve more than 1.8 million customers and
boast customer growth rates that are among the highest
in the industry.

Atlanta Gas Light Company (“AGLC”) and Chattanooga
Gas Company provide natural gas delivery service to more
than 1.5 million homes and businesses throughout
Georgia and Tennessee.

In October 2000, AGL Resources acquired Virginia
Natural Gas (“VNG”), which serves more than 230,000
customers and is headquartered in Norfolk, Virginia.
With its service territory in the economically vibrant
Hampton Roads region of Virginia, VNG is among
the industry leaders in customer growth at more than
4 percent per year.

Telecommunications
AGL Networks was formed to leverage our experience
in managing underground infrastructure to install
conduit and fiber optic cable for communication 
network companies.

Retail Energy Marketing
Through SouthStar Energy Services, AGL Resources 
is a joint venture partner with Piedmont Natural Gas
Company and Dynegy Holdings, Inc. SouthStar offers
retail energy products and services to more than 500,000
customers in Georgia and 500 industrial customers
throughout the Southeast. SouthStar operates in Georgia
under the trade name of Georgia Natural Gas Services.

Propane
AGL Resources is a partner in Heritage Propane, the
fourth largest propane distributor serving more than
480,000 customers in 28 states.

Customer Care
Utilipro provides outsourced customer care services
(billing, call center, payment processing) to energy
marketing companies.

We Serve Over 1.8 Million Natural Gas Distribution Customers

Our Service Areas

Atlanta

Chattanooga NC

SC

GA

AL

TN

VA

Norfolk

Acquired Virginia Natural Gas
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Paula G. Rosput,
AGL Resources Inc.
President and Chief Executive Officer

We’re  rewriting
the book
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You are about to learn of a new company –one born out of trial, steeled by experience,and setting a new standard of excellence andachievement. This will not be your traditionalgas company. We have sharpened our visionof our future and adopted a new mindsetabout our potential. We have shed traditionalways of viewing and running our business.We have embraced a new confidence in ourability to transform this enterprise into onethat creates its own opportunities.In the following pages, we invite you to seehow our rewrite of this business already hastranslated into the most successful chapter inour history.
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CHAPTER 1:

Efficient Operations

Transforming

Whatever is at the core of an enterprise must be its

strongest point, its foundation, its center. From the core

flow the most important attributes, qualities and values

that shape the rest of the company.

Nothing truer could be said about our core gas 

distribution business, for over the past year we have

transformed our core utility business into one of the

top performers in the industry. We reduced expenses,

streamlined basic business processes and unleashed

employees on a range of initiatives and innovations that

are improving operating efficiency and customer service.

The initiative that best reflects the combination of

technology and innovation reshaping this business is

Automated Dispatch. It allows our field service repre-

sentatives to get their work orders through electronic

mobile data terminals in their trucks rather than through

dispatch calls and paper work orders. Automated Dispatch

has boosted productivity, reduced paperwork, and

maximized the time our representatives spend in the

field. The system has another important component

that our busy customers enjoy: setting appointments

for service, making it easier for our customers to plan

their day around our visit.

Leveraging and Realigning Our Strengths

We are leveraging our strong customer relationships with

the launch of our www.atlantagaslight.com web site,

which is designed to market natural gas appliances as

well as offer useful information to our customers. The

web initiative reflects our commitment to seek out

partnerships and industry allies to deepen our offerings –

in this case, linking up with Enercom’s national appliance

“warehouse” and partnering with select suppliers and

HVAC contractors locally to handle deliveries and

installation of purchased appliances.

Working Smarter

Our rapid and effective deployment of technology and

new work practices allowed us to reduce our labor costs

throughout our utility operations. We reduced our field

workforce from 1,492 in January 1999 to 1,038 in

October 2000. By improving our approaches to dispatch-

ing and more efficiently stocking trucks with supplies,

we were able to reduce the number of service centers

from 39 to 21.

By matching these labor reductions with improved

work practices, we were able to boost productivity, spur

the pace of our daily activities and record gains in our

report card from customers and independent marketers.

Our retail customers are benefitting from faster and more

flexible dispatching and greater efficiency in availability

of our services through better voice response units, better-

trained call representatives, and web-based services and

products. Our regulatory climate is stabilizing through

more open communication with the Georgia, Tennessee,

and Virginia commissions. And our market position is

strong in growing areas of the Southeast and now Virginia.

We have just finished our best year ever, installing 55,442

new meters at $758 per meter – the lowest cost in the

industry.
During the year, we were also able to advance several

goals common to us and our state regulatory commissions,

including a plan that adjusts AGLC’s base distribution

charges to better reflect seasonal usage while maintaining

a steady stream of annual revenues from our distribution

operations.

The transformation of our core business is far from

complete, but it is already translating into improved

customer service, more efficient field operations, and

consistent earnings.

Automation allows appointment setting

for customers and faster field response
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CHAPTER 2:

Manage Costs

Not enough - be relentless

When we said we wanted to grow, we didn’t have to
look very far or long for the ideal opportunity. Our
acquisition of Norfolk-based VNG marks our largest
acquisition to date – and our most promising.At face value, VNG is a great addition to our core
business. It boosts our customer base more than 15percent to 1.8 million. It serves the Hampton Roads
region of Virginia, an area boasting an annual customer
growth rate of four percent, which is above the industry
average. VNG’s market is an attractive balance of
residential, commercial, and industrial gas users. And
it operates 155 miles of transmission pipeline and4,110 miles of gas mains – valuable infrastructure for
continued growth in the region. Our per-customer
acquisition cost was among the best in the industry
and positioned us well to have this operation add to
earnings during fiscal 2001.We closed this transaction ahead of schedule, within
five months, allowing us to benefit from the start of
the heating season in that market. But that fast-paced
acquisition effort also meant we were able to movequickly to mine the additional value of VNG – theopportunity to deploy the proven business practices

from AGLC. The real success in any acquisition is the
ability to integrate the operations quickly and effectively.
Our joint transition team was well underway before the
closing, identifying opportunities in the combination
of our companies.

Coupling Our Strengths EffectivelyRising with the tide of population growth does not,
by itself, generate superior returns, nor does it always
serve customers best. AGLC already has the industry’s
lowest cost for installing new meters, so by extending
our success in this area into VNG we can lower our
cost of operations, improve service to customers and
developers, and create the capacity for earnings growth
as the region continues to expand.Both AGLC and VNG have developed best practices
in several different areas of operations and we are already
sharing those successes within both units.The acquisition of VNG is a logical and compelling
opportunity to extend our success in utility operations
to a market that will strengthen our foothold in the
fast-growing Southeastern region.

Strengthening analready strong opportunity
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Figure 6a. Gas company growth traditionally is dependent upon population trends.

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
COST PER CUSTOMER
Annual cost to serve each utility customer

(1) Includes AGLC and Chattanooga

NET CAPITAL COST PER NEW METER

Capital investment for extending our utility system to a new customer

AGL (1)

VNG

$196

AGL (1)

VNG

$140

$758 $1,637

Leverage growth by integrating best practices
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CHAPTER 3:

Manage Assets

In today’s world of broadband communications andfiber optic networks, our strength couldn’t be in abetter place: Underground.
High capacity fiber optic networks are creatingseemingly limitless bandwidth for people and businessesto communicate as never before, but those same networks need some space of their own, and much ofit needs to be found beneath the busy streets of cities.Our kind of place.

As one of the best operators of underground distribu-tion systems in the nation, we have refined our skillsand capabilities in contracting, engineering, permitting,and work management. These are all critical elementsin the success of a telecom company seeking to safelyand efficiently install new fiber networks underground.It serves the best interests of our communities andcustomers for us to find a way to co-construct conduitwhen we replace gas mains. This way, we can supportthe growth of our communities while minimizing thedisruption and potential safety issues that arise whenmultiple contractors are cutting into streets.To bring a focus to this market and separate it fromour utility operations, we formed AGL Networks.Already, our approach to this market is capturing the attention of leading fiber network developers,especially in Atlanta, where almost boundless growthis straining the capacity of its infrastructure. Mostmajor fiber optic network developers in Atlanta haveheld discussions with us on their network needs andwe expect to extend this partnership in other marketswhere we have a strong presence.

AGL Networks is approaching this market inthree ways:

• The first phase is co-constructing conduit along gas main routes and leasing the conduit capacity to fiber network developers;

• The second phase of our effort moves us up thevalue chain in the telecom industry by putting us in partnership with major fiber network providersin joint development efforts. We would install “dark”fiber, leasing the fiber itself to other telecoms orjointly operating the fiber systems as a separate telecom venture; and

• The third phase of our strategy is to market the latentcapacity of retired or obsolete gas, water and sewermains as conduit for fiber systems. Retired mains arethose that are no longer used or useful in the utilitybut can be recycled to serve as conduit for fiber withoutthe major digging required of new conduit. Thisplan is well underway with the development of ourweb site, www.retiredmain.com, which will givetelecoms an on-line resource to purchase conduitcapacity that we will market on behalf of municipalitiesand water and gas companies.

It is easy to sometimes take what you do best forgranted. We have learned, over the past three years ofhard work, that we cannot take anything for granted.Because sometimes the value you seek is right underyour feet.

Maximize our core pipe installation skills in one
of the world’s fastest growing telecom markets

Leveraging Our
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CHAPTER 4:

Maintaining Facilities

Optimizing Wholesale 

Opportunities

A gas delivery system may be all connected, but each

piece – whether a pipeline, storage facility or local gas

main – has its own role and its own unique value in

today’s energy market. At AGL Resources, we intend

to have each piece play its role to the fullest – both in

serving customers and adding value for shareholders.

In particular, over the years, we have assembled a

contract portfolio of interstate gas pipeline and storage

assets that were traditionally associated with distribut-

ing gas to Georgia and Tennessee. When you step back

and look at these assets as they are seen by the rest of

the industry, it is an impressive picture.

We are the largest liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) pro-

vider in the Southeast and the fifth largest in the nation.

With our acquisition of VNG, we have now added sig-

nificant intrastate pipeline and distribution facilities to

our current base of distribution pipelines in Georgia and

Tennessee. This gives us a pipeline and distribution net-

work that laces through some of the highest growth areas

of the Eastern and Southeastern U.S. Also, the VNG

acquisition provides us access to increased interstate

capacity. These strategic additions give us the desired

scale to capitalize on emerging business opportunities –

such as taking advantage of short-term supply, capacity

and price changes – in the larger energy markets.

Attractive Storage Assets

Given the profile of natural gas usage in our part of the

country, summer and winter peaking resources such as

LNG are in great need but in limited supply. By care-

fully balancing the commitment to ensure adequate

supply assets with the opportunities to respond to other

demands for LNG supplies in the open market, we can

reduce costs for customers and add value for shareholders.

Our pipeline and storage capacity is both large enough

and strategically located to enable us to partner with

respected, major players in energy trading and asset

optimization so we can participate in the broader energy

markets. Developing these partnerships and achieving

positive results is a key goal for us in fiscal 2001.

Further, there is an increasing need throughout our

region for more supplies of electric power, and natural

gas has become the fuel of choice for responsible power

development, especially to meet summer peak demand.

Again, we are strategically positioned to capture a niche

in this emerging marketplace. It is important that gas

pipelines run close to electric transmission lines. We

offer a power developer the siting, gas supply manage-

ment, and ancillary services that would enable them to

build and operate new peaking plants in the Southeast

on a very competitive basis.  

Innovative Arrangement

This focus on optimizing assets also means knowing when

to manage a business and when to restructure it to extract

its full value. Our stand-alone propane operations never

achieved sufficient scale to generate the return we require

of our invested capital, so we first combined them with

the propane businesses of three other regional utilities

to form an entity called US Propane. Then we took an

innovative path to sell US Propane to Heritage Propane,

one of the nation’s largest and most respected propane

companies. In turn, US Propane acquired the general

partner of Heritage Propane. This arrangement quickly

monetized a portion of our investment in the propane

business, gave us board-level oversight, and positioned

us for improved future cash distributions from

Heritage Propane.
Fiscal 2001 will mark a watershed year for our 

customers and our shareholders as we implement 

our strategic vision to be a key regional player in the

energy marketplace through asset optimization and

value creation.

Wholesale gas assets 
well positioned to grow
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Figure 8b. LNG storage facility

Interstate PipelinesAGLC and VNG Intrastate PipelinesAGLC and Chattanooga LNG Storage Facilities
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Chapter 5:

High Performance Teams

This means ALL employees contribute

Some improvements are planned. Some improvements

are scheduled and expected. And some of the best

improvements come from the minds of our employees

who have taken our shareholder value mission to heart.

It shows.
Many of our employees are in jobs that, by their

nature, demand routines. But the new and better ways

they have found to do their work show they hardly

consider their jobs routine. Our employees have developed

and worked out the kinks in technology and innovative

work practices to drive down costs and spur the pace of

our daily operations. They have eliminated or automated

functions that would mire most traditional utilities in

paperwork. Our employees have come through the

gauntlet of reshaping our core distribution business as

a result of the deregulation of Georgia’s natural gas market.

They have emerged with a fierce determination and

refreshing resilience as we rewrite the rules of how to be

a new breed of gas company. Our most basic business

processes – working customer orders, dispatching crews,

installing new services – are now subject to rigorous

assessment and improvement by our employees every

day. In short, we have taken what we do well and brought

it to a higher level.

Over this past year, our employees have transformed

a number of our key functions:

Better Leak Order Processes

Team members recognized that the technology of a

hand-held computer could make a world of difference

in completing our leak order survey process.

They have developed applications that will allow

our crews and contractors next year to use hand-held

computers to complete and streamline the leak order

form process. Using this technology saves the cost of

call-backs and reduces reporting time at the end of the

day from approximately 45 minutes to five minutes.

Innovations in Construction and Maintenance

We launched MeterExpress, another time-saving tool

that allows the meter of a new home to be installed earlier

in the homebuilding process. This new approach means

we no longer have to make a return trip to light appliances

for meter sets in residential new construction. Instead,

builders can now determine and control when the fuel

line is connected, when the mechanical inspection takes

place, and when the appliance light up occurs.

We also are offering our expertise in constructing and

managing distribution systems to other municipalities

or industrial developments. We are already working with

the city of Quitman, Georgia, serving as its gas system

maintenance department. In Grantville, Georgia, we

are managing the city’s gas system replacement project.

Streamlined Purchase Functions

We are incorporating the PeopleSoft® supply chain

modules into our financial systems to make accounts

payable, employee reimbursement, inventory, and

purchasing functions more streamlined and practically

paperless. One of the goals of the system is to create a

platform for a company-wide e-commerce strategy to

facilitate faster, simpler interaction with vendors and

suppliers.
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Memorandum 

TO: All Team Members 

SUBJECT: Work Practices 

We will be implementing standard procedures for all basic business processes.

The procedures have been developed and approved by senior management 
and should be followed at all times to ensure work is done in a routine fashion.

If you have any questions, you should refer them to your supervisor.

Innovation

to raise them with

we encourage

and team members.ideas

are best

measured

teams closest to the work

adding to shareholder value.

encourage you to continually 

improve our approach to

Figure 11a. Sample  memorandum
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Nearly three years ago, we embarked on an ambitious goal to be the best gas company in the
country. We believed that market forces would ultimately dictate new standards of performance
for our industry. Remaining as we were was not an option. But more important, becoming the
best was a necessary ambition because we were determined to generate a superior return for you,
our shareholders. Only if we were willing to reshape and redirect the company in nearly every
way would we achieve a sustainable path to earnings growth and material share price appreciation.

Becoming the best at anything is a noble goal, but it is rarely an easy one. When we adopted this
goal, we knew it would demand difficult decisions that touched you and our employees. With
little precedent for the issues we confronted, we have been learning and adapting. With no
book to guide our efforts in becoming a new company, we are writing our own.

The story is not complete, nor may it ever end, but the first chapters we have written this
past year are impressive:

• Net income of $71.1 million and earnings per share of $1.29;

• Core earnings (net income excluding one-time items) increased $16.5 million, or 32 percent
above last year;

• Core earnings per share of $1.24, a boost of 36 percent over last fiscal year;

• Four straight quarters of earnings above analyst expectations;

• A stock price that finished the fiscal year at a 52-week high and 23 percent above the price at
the same point last year; and

• Completion in record time of our purchase of Virginia Natural Gas, the largest and most
promising acquisition in the company’s history.

To Our Shareholders

Paula G. Rosput,
AGL Resources Inc.
President and 
Chief Executive Officer
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Letter To Shareholders continued

Outlining the Success Story
I served as president and chief operating officer of Atlanta Gas Light and had the privilege of
working with Walt Higgins, your CEO for the last three years, on a vision of the company we
sought to become. Walt left near the end of this fiscal year, but the course we had established is
the right one. As the CEO of AGL Resources, I am determined to accelerate this course to 
capture even greater value for our owners.

By any measure, the story of this past year is one of a turnaround. The real success, however,
is not this year’s achievements. Rather, it is the resolve and focus the year has brought that equip
us for the future. My philosophy is that if we run our core business well, our strengths will lead
to new opportunities.

Our strength is that we develop and manage infrastructure and distribution systems. 
Our business practices are the most advanced in
our industry and on par with those of contemporary
industrial companies. Deregulation pushed us to be lean
and efficient, to measure the performance of every employee and every
business practice, and to have a financial toughness in managing and leveraging 
our assets. This mindset has imposed a rigid discipline on our operating practices, which explains
this year’s results and gives us great optimism about the future. This mindset has also introduced
us to new opportunities in markets where our core construction and asset management skills
can be applied. “Pipe” may not have the allure of novel concepts being tried in this industry, but
it is a solid and profitable business to be in if you are good at it – and we are.

Focusing on this view of our business is helping us extract unrealized value from our current
assets and has propelled us to approach new markets.

• We are successful operators of gas distribution systems. This proven competency means we can
maintain a steady stream of earnings from our core business and have confidence of even
greater earnings growth by applying these practices to gas companies we acquire.

• We are innovators in transforming our most basic work practices. By reducing the cost of installing
meters and pipe, we can generate even greater returns from the population growth of our markets.

• We have facilities and capabilities that are valuable to industry partners. Our ability to install fiber
optic conduit alongside gas mains, to recycle obsolete gas mains into fiber optic conduits, and
leverage our experience in permitting and contracting are valuable to fiber network companies
seeking to expand in our growing markets.

• We have gas pipeline and storage assets in the right place. Our gas pipelines and LNG storage
assets can be optimized to reduce customers’ costs and create greater shareholder value in the
broader energy markets or used to support power generation development.

With this view of the inherent value of our business, we are writing a new set of rules and
principles by which we believe we can capitalize on our core strengths and realize the full value
of who we are becoming.

Our turnaround
comes from a deep
resolve to pursue
new, promising
courses for the 
company.



14

Letter To Shareholders continued

Rediscovering the Value in Our Core Business
The first chapter in our transformation begins with our core gas distribution business, Atlanta Gas
Light Company. The deregulation of the gas market in Georgia – the fastest and most comprehensive
in the industry – uncoupled our distribution business from marketing activities. While the challenges
of creating a smoothly running deregulated environment remain with us, the Georgia model
enabled us to take a fresh look at the value of our distribution operations. This concentration has
led us to discover – or rediscover – the inherent value in our base business.

We are successfully applying new technology and business practices to our core utility
processes to reduce the cost of routine tasks, freeing up human and financial capital to transform
other areas of our business. This year, we deployed our Automated Dispatch system on time
and under budget. This program puts computers in trucks and in the hands of field service 
representatives so they can connect with our work management systems, allowing them to start
their day from home and more quickly respond to changing customer needs during the day. 
We also are quickly and successfully automating many of our mapping, engineering, and 

procurement systems so we can further enhance the accuracy, efficiency, and ultimate
profitability of everything we do.

By serving customers well
and supporting the growth interests in our states,
we are confident we can enjoy steady returns from our utility businesses
while leveraging our skills and market presence in other value-building ventures.

Our demonstrated success in profitably running utility businesses is what makes our acquisition
of VNG particularly valuable to the continued growth of our core business. VNG’s retail business
is supported by a robust economy in the Hampton Roads region, but the real value is in the
opportunity we have to deploy many proven operating practices from our Atlanta Gas Light
utility business within VNG. By driving down VNG’s cost of meter installations, customer
service, and distribution system maintenance, we can leverage the economic growth in the
region to generate very favorable returns.

Our Growth is Grounded in Our Skills
In operating utility systems for decades, we have gained an unparalleled depth of knowledge
about the underground facilities in our communities, strong relationships with contractors,
and experience in permitting and work scheduling. We have long recognized the value of these
assets and skills in a traditional sense; but in rewriting the book on our core business, we have
developed a new definition, a new context, around these assets and competencies.

Beginning late in the fiscal year, we launched a telecommunications development venture,
AGL Networks, that is already proving to be an attractive partner for major fiber optic network
companies. Telecom network developers face significant costs and practical obstacles in constructing
fiber networks in dense urban areas. Now, gas, water or sewer mains that are no longer suitable
for their original purposes can take on a new life as conduit if those mains can be recycled and 

We can further enhance
the accuracy,efficiency,
and ultimate profitabil-
ity of everything we do.
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Letter To Shareholders continued

Decisions must be
rooted in discipline
around building
shareholder value.

managed by skilled crews that understand underground infrastructure. As yet another example
of taking our skills and ideas to a larger market, we are launching an on-line auction business
where we will serve as a marketer of conduit capacity from municipalities or other utilities that
have retired mains.

Launching a telecommunications venture would not have come, or come as quickly, had we not
changed and improved everything we did in the core business. As a result, we are finding even more
opportunities to extend our core competencies in developing and managing underground
infrastructure systems. Our telecom venture is only one example of how the resilience and 
creativity we are developing through our transformation is now being unleashed on promising
market opportunities.

Finding New Value in Traditional Assets
In redrafting the meaning of the term “gas company,” we are challenging ourselves to find new
value in all of the assets that traditionally come with being a utility. In our utility operations, 
we have contracted for interstate storage and pipeline assets that can play an important role in
supporting development within our service areas.

We are the largest liquefied natural gas supplier in the Southeast and one of the five largest in
the U.S. We expect to pursue acquisitions that will strengthen our market share and position us
well to supply utility and municipal needs in the region.

We also have great potential in the array of intrastate pipelines laced throughout Georgia,
Tennessee, and now Virginia. By prudently marketing this capacity at

the right times, we can provide greater certainty
and reliability, as well

as cost savings, for
our customers while gaining the greatest value
for our shareholders. With our acquisition of VNG, we now have
sufficient scale in gas resources and capacity to allow us to support the growth of our region
and participate more fully in new market opportunities in the broader energy markets. For
example, our assets throughout Georgia, Tennessee, and Virginia put us in a strong position to
supply clean-burning natural gas to new electric generating units being built to meet growing
power demand.

Keeping Shareholder Value at the Heart of Our Business
A key chapter in our rewrite of this business is driving a shareholder value mentality through every
aspect of our decision-making and management. As a leadership team, we are deeply resolved
to keep our commitments to you as owners and restore your confidence in the potential of this
company. The strong rebound in our stock price is evidence we are fulfilling that purpose.
However, we know that such confidence must be earned again and again in the decisions we make
in the future, and those decisions must be rooted in a discipline around building shareholder
value. We have a new generation of leaders at all levels of the company whose conviction around
building shareholder value has been forged in the crucible of deregulation and the urgencies
imposed by a rapidly changing marketplace. Accustomed to creating success out of difficult 



circumstances, they are now equally relentless in making something out of the many opportunities
we see ahead.

To support this conviction, we have exercised strict standards for our use of capital, driven
costs and inefficiencies out of our core business practice, and applied business case regimens to
all major operational initiatives. The restructuring of our propane business in the last fiscal year
is an example of this financial discipline. Strong focus on optimizing the deployment of capital
gives us more predictability in our core business and builds capacity for earnings growth.

Our rewrite of the business will always be refreshed and edited by what we see as emerging
trends in our industry. Just as an example, most utilities believed that sweeping regulatory
reform would usher in promising market opportunities in competitive energy retailing. We
directed some of our resources toward these prospects in the last two years in energy billing and
retail marketing ventures. Georgia Natural Gas Services captured a dominant share of the 
competitive Georgia market for direct gas sales. As the ground swell favoring more deregulation
has waned in many states, the prospects for further near-term growth in energy marketing are
limited. However, these same trends have affirmed our sustained confidence and concentration
in regulated distribution operations.

This business will continue to change. We will aggressively pursue new business opportuni-
ties within our core competencies that promise superior returns. We will also make crisp and
timely decisions to restructure or shed any businesses that do not. We owe that to you.

There are many contributors to the book we are writing – our board of directors, our leader-
ship team, and, most importantly, our employees. Many companies say that their employees
are their most valuable resource. At AGL Resources, the employees who accomplished the turn-
around of fiscal 2000 truly are a shareholder asset. I could not write this letter if our employees
had faltered in their belief in what we could become. We simply would not be where we are
today if our employees had not reached deep within themselves to find a way. I thank them.

I believe this is a great business to be in today, but success comes only when you make it happen. 
We are proving that we have both the attitude and the aptitude to excel. By sharing with

you what we expect of ourselves, you can know what to expect from us.
The best.

Sincerely,

Paula G. Rosput,
AGL Resources Inc.
President and Chief Executive Officer

November 28, 2000

Letter To Shareholders continued
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Success comes
only when you
make it happen.
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A G L  R e s o u r c e s

Selected Financial Data

Income Statement and Earnings Reinvested Data
Operating revenues
Cost of sales

Operating margin
Other operating expenses

Operation and maintenance
Depreciation
Taxes other than income taxes
Total other operating expenses

Operating income
Other income
Interest expense and preferred stock dividends
Income before income taxes
Income taxes
Net income
Loss on issuance of treasury stock
Common dividends paid
Earnings reinvested

Common Stock Data
Weighted average shares outstanding – basic
Weighted average shares outstanding – diluted
Earnings per share – basic
Earnings per share – diluted
Dividends per share
Dividend payout ratio
Book value per share(1)

Market value per share(2)

Balance Sheet Data(1)

Total assets
Long-term liabilities

Accrued environmental response costs
Accrued postretirement benefits costs
Accrued pension costs
Capital leases
Deferred credits

Capitalization
Long-term debt (excluding current portion)
Preferred stock of subsidiary
Subsidiary obligated manditorily redeemable preferred securities
Common stockholders’ equity
Total capitalization

Financial Ratios(1)

Capitalization
Long-term debt 
Preferred stock of subsidiary
Subsidiary obligated manditorily redeemable preferred securities
Common stockholders’ equity
Total

Return on average common stockholders’ equity

Ratio of Earnings to:(3)

Interest charges
Interest charges and preferred stock dividends
Combined fixed charges and stock dividends(4)

For the years ended September 30,

2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

In Millions, except per share amounts

$  607.4
111.9
495.5

247.8
83.2
26.7

357.7
137.8
28.2
57.7

108.3
37.2
71.1
(0.2)
59.8

$    11.1

55.2
55.2
1.29
1.29
1.08
83.7%

11.49
20.06

$2,019.9

$ 111.7
31.9
6.7
1.0

49.0

590.0
–

74.3
620.9

$1,285.2

45.9%
–

5.8
48.3

100.0%
11.1%

3.13
2.81
2.61

$1,070.7
544.7
526.0

268.2
78.8
24.4

371.4
154.6
18.0
59.1

113.5
39.1
74.4
(0.1)
62.1

$ 12.2

57.4
57.4
1.30
1.29
1.08
83.1%

11.58
16.25

$1,970.4

$ 102.4
32.4
5.3

–
49.2

610.0
–

74.3
661.5

$1,345.8

45.3%
–

5.5
49.2

100.0%
11.3%

3.23
2.90
2.72

$1,340.1
796.0
544.1

278.0
71.1
27.4

376.5
167.6
12.9
61.1

119.4
38.8
80.6

–
61.5

$ 19.1

57.0
57.1
1.41
1.41
1.08
76.6%

11.42
19.38

$1,985.3

$ 47.0
33.4
2.2

–
57.8

660.0
–

74.3
654.1

$1,388.4

47.5%
–

5.4
47.1

100.0%
12.6%

3.30
2.94
2.77

$1,287.6
766.5
521.1

257.0
66.6
26.0

349.6
171.5
10.3
58.4

123.4
46.8
76.6

–
60.5

$ 16.1

56.1
56.2
1.37
1.36
1.08
78.8%

10.99
18.94

$1,925.5

$ 37.3
34.3

–
–

62.4

660.0
–

74.3
622.1

$1,356.4

48.6%
–

5.5
45.9

100.0%
12.7%

3.46
3.10
2.90

$1,228.6
725.5
503.1

251.3
63.3
25.0

339.6
163.5
13.1
53.5

123.1
47.5
75.6

–
58.6

$ 17.0

55.3
55.4
1.37
1.36
1.06
77.4%

10.56
19.13

$1,823.1

$ 30.4
36.2

4.9
–

60.9

554.5
58.5

–
588.3

$1,201.3

46.1%
4.9

–
49.0

100.0%
13.2%

3.58
3.28
3.08

(1) Year-end. (2) September 30 closing market price. (3) Interest charges exclude the debt portion of allowance for funds used during construction. (4) Fixed charges
consist of interest on short- and long-term debt, other interest and the estimated interest component of rentals.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 allows
public companies to provide cautionary remarks about
forward-looking statements that they make in documents
that are filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”). Forward-looking statements in our Management’s
Discussion and Analysis include, but are not limited to,
statements about the following:

• Deregulation;
• Business prospects;
• Concentration of credit risk;
• Environmental investigations and cleanups;
• Quantitative and qualitative disclosures about 

market risk;
• Virginia Natural Gas acquisition;
• Propane operations; and
• Changes required by the Public Utility Holding

Company Act of 1935 (“PUHCA”).

Important factors that could cause our actual results to
differ substantially from those in the forward-looking
statements include, but are not limited to, the following: 

• Industrial, commercial, and residential growth in
the service territories of AGL Resources and its
subsidiaries;

• Changes in price and demand for natural gas and
related products; 

• Impact of changes in state and federal legislation and
regulation on both the gas and electric industries; 

• Effects and uncertainties of deregulation and
competition, particularly in markets where prices and
providers historically have been regulated, unknown
risks related to nonregulated businesses, and unknown
issues such as the stability of certificated marketers;

• Concentration of credit risk in certificated marketers;
• Industry consolidation;
• Impact of acquisitions and divestitures;
• Changes in accounting policies and practices issued

periodically by accounting standard-setting bodies; 
• Interest rate fluctuations, financial market conditions,

and economic conditions, generally;
• Uncertainties about environmental issues and the

related impact of such issues; and
• Other factors including uncertainties about weather

and the related impact of such factors.

NATURE OF OUR BUSINESS 

Organizational Structure

AGL Resources Inc. is the registered holding company for: 
• Atlanta Gas Light Company (“AGLC”), a natural

gas local distribution utility;
• Virginia Natural Gas, Inc. (“VNG”), a natural gas

local distribution utility (see Nature of Our
Business – Virginia Natural Gas);

• Chattanooga Gas Company (“Chattanooga”), a
natural gas local distribution utility;

• AGL Energy Services, Inc. (“AGLE”), a gas supply
services company; and 

• Several non-utility subsidiaries. 

AGL Resources Inc. and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as “AGL Resources.”

AGLC conducts its primary business, the distribution
of natural gas, in Georgia including Atlanta, Athens,
Augusta, Brunswick, Macon, Rome, Savannah, and
Valdosta. Chattanooga distributes natural gas in the
Chattanooga and Cleveland areas of Tennessee. VNG
distributes natural gas in the Hampton Roads region of
Virginia. The Georgia Public Service Commission (“GPSC”)
regulates AGLC, the Tennessee Regulatory Authority
(“TRA”) regulates Chattanooga and the Virginia State
Corporation Commission (“VSCC”) regulates VNG. AGLE
is a nonregulated company that manages gas supply assets
for regulated operations and secures gas supply services
for unregulated operations and other unaffiliated retail
gas marketers.

As of September 30, 2000, AGLC and Chattanooga
comprised substantially all of AGL Resources’ assets,
revenues, and earnings. The operations and activities of
AGLC, AGLE, and Chattanooga, collectively, are referred
to as the “utility.” The utility’s total other operating
expenses include costs allocated from AGL Resources Inc.

As of September 30, 2000, AGL Resources owned or
had an interest in the following non-utility businesses: 

• SouthStar Energy Services LLC (“SouthStar”), a joint
venture among a subsidiary of AGL Resources and
subsidiaries of Dynegy Holdings, Inc. and Piedmont
Natural Gas Company. SouthStar markets natural gas
and related services to residential and small
commercial customers in Georgia and to industrial
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customers in the Southeast. SouthStar began
marketing natural gas to customers in Georgia
during the first quarter of fiscal 1999 under the
trade name Georgia Natural Gas Services;

• AGL Investments, Inc., which manages certain non-
utility businesses including: 
• AGL Propane Services, Inc. (“Propane”) has a

22.36% ownership interest in US Propane LLC (“US
Propane”). US Propane owns 34% of Heritage
Propane Partners (“Heritage Propane”) which
engages in the sale of propane and related products
and services in 28 states;

• Utilipro, Inc. (“Utilipro”), in which AGL
Resources has a 91.74% ownership interest and
which engages in the sale of integrated customer
care solutions and billing services to energy
marketers in the United States; and

• AGL Networks, LLC (“AGL Networks”), which
will install, and lease to third-party operators,
conduit and fiber optic cable. AGL Networks was
incorporated on August 15, 2000 for the purpose
of partnering with other telecommunication
companies to serve Atlanta’s rapidly growing
demand for high-speed network capacity.

• AGL Peaking Services, Inc., which owns a 50%
interest in Etowah LNG Company, LLC (“Etowah”), a
joint venture with Southern Natural Gas
Company. Etowah was formed for the purpose of
constructing, owning, and operating a liquefied
natural gas peaking facility; and

• AGL Capital Corporation, which was established to
finance the acquisition of VNG, refinance existing
short-term debt and provide working capital to AGL
Resources and its subsidiaries through a commercial
paper program and other debt facilities.

VIRGINIA NATURAL GAS

Effective October 1, 2000, AGL Resources acquired all of
the outstanding common stock of VNG, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Consolidated Natural Gas Company and
an indirect subsidiary of Dominion Resources, Inc. The
purchase price of approximately $533 million, paid in cash,
included approximately $4.8 million in working capital.

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase for
financial accounting purposes and as a result VNG’s
operations will be consolidated with AGL Resources
beginning October 1, 2000. The excess purchase price
over the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed was allocated to goodwill, which will be
amortized over 40 years.

With the addition of VNG’s customer base of
approximately 230,000, AGL Resources is now the second
largest natural gas-only distributor in the United States,
serving nearly 1.8 million customers. VNG is headquartered
in Norfolk, Virginia, and serves customers in the Hampton
Roads region of southeastern Virginia.

PROPANE OPERATIONS

On February 15, 2000, AGL Resources entered into a
definitive agreement to combine its propane operations
with the propane operations of Atmos Energy Corporation,
Piedmont Natural Gas Company, and TECO Energy, 
Inc. The joint venture, which is called US Propane,
subsequently combined US Propane’s operations with
Heritage Propane. The transactions were closed on
August 10, 2000. Through these transactions, US Propane
acquired ownership of the general partner, as well as
certain limited partner units of Heritage Propane, a master
limited partnership that distributes propane to over
480,000 customers in 28 states. 

As a result of these transactions, AGL Resources
recognized a pre-tax and after-tax gain of $13.1 million
and $10.7 million, respectively.
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OVERVIEW OF THE TRANSITION IN GEORGIA FROM A REGULATED TO A
COMPETITIVE BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

Pursuant to Georgia’s 1997 Natural Gas Competition and
Deregulation Act (“Deregulation Act”), AGLC unbundled
various components of its services to end-use customers
effective October 6, 1998. Historically, only large,
interruptible commercial and industrial customers had
the option of purchasing natural gas from suppliers
other than AGLC and transporting such natural gas
through AGLC’s distribution system for delivery. The
Deregulation Act enabled AGLC to unbundle its delivery
service and other related services from the sale of natural
gas for all customers, thus allowing firm residential and
small commercial customers to purchase natural gas and
other services from suppliers other than AGLC. Effective
October 1, 1999, virtually all of AGLC’s 1.4 million
customers in Georgia were purchasing natural gas from
marketers who were approved and certificated by the
GPSC (“certificated marketers”).

The Deregulation Act provides marketing standards
and rules of business practice to ensure that the benefits
of a competitive natural gas market are available to all
customers on AGLC’s system. It imposes on certificated
marketers an obligation to serve end-use customers, and
creates a Universal Service Fund (“USF”). The USF provides
a method to fund the recovery of certificated marketers’
uncollectible accounts, enables AGLC to expand its
facilities to serve the public interest and can be used
to reduce rates paid by consumers. 

AGLC continues to provide intrastate delivery service
through its existing pipeline system to end-use customers
in Georgia, but has exited the natural gas sales function.
AGLC’s delivery of natural gas remains subject to the
GPSC’s continued regulation of delivery rates, safety,
access to AGLC’s system, and quality of service for all
aspects of delivery service. 

Certificated marketers – including AGL Resources’
marketing affiliate, SouthStar – compete to sell natural
gas to end-use customers at market-based prices. AGLC
allocates delivery capacity to certificated marketers in
proportion to the number and size of residential and
small commercial customers served by each certificated
marketer. Delivery capacity that is not used on any day
to serve firm residential and small commercial customers

is made available to interruptible commercial and industrial
customers. Similarly, AGLC has allocated to certificated
marketers the majority of the pipeline storage services
that it has under contract, along with a corresponding
amount of inventory. 

During fiscal 1999, AGLC continued to provide gas
sales service to customers who had not yet switched to
a certificated marketer. Pursuant to a joint stipulation
agreement with the GPSC, AGLC implemented a rate
structure for gas sales that ensured AGLC’s recovery of its
purchased gas costs incurred from October 6, 1998
through September 30, 1999, without creating any
significant income or loss. The joint stipulation agreement
provided for a true-up for any profit or loss outside of a
specified range during fiscal 1999. During fiscal 2000,
pursuant to the joint stipulation agreement, AGLC remitted
approximately $34 million in over-collected purchased
gas costs to the GPSC. Such costs were included in Gas
Cost Credits as of September 30, 1999. During the second
quarter of fiscal 2000, the GPSC instituted a mechanism
pursuant to which certificated marketers were required
to provide customers with a credit on their bill. To be
eligible for the refund credit, the customer had to have
been on AGLC’s system on May 25, 1999, and still
connected as of April 3, 2000. Refund amounts were
distributed by the GPSC to the marketers during the
second quarter of fiscal 2000. The average refund per
end-use customer was approximately $25.

Also during the transition to competition, AGLC
continued to bill end-use customers who had not yet
switched to certificated marketers for gas sales service
and for certain ancillary services. These ancillary services
included meter reading, billing, bill inquiry, payment
processing, and collection services. Once an end-use
customer switched to a certificated marketer for gas sales
service, the Deregulation Act permitted AGLC to bill the
marketer only for the AGLC-provided ancillary services
actually used by the marketer. However, AGLC was
unable to eliminate all of the costs associated with the
provision of ancillary services as quickly as customers
switched to certificated marketers for natural gas sales,
thereby creating an imbalance between revenues and
expenses throughout fiscal 1999 and into the first quarter
of fiscal 2000. All end-use customers were switched to
certificated marketers by the end of January 2000.
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As a result of the transition to competition, numerous
changes have occurred with respect to the services being
offered by AGLC and with respect to the manner in which
AGLC prices and accounts for those services. Consequently,
AGLC’s revenues and expenses do not follow historical
patterns due to the provision of delivery services to end-
use customers which are priced based upon straight fixed
variable (“SFV”) rates. The effect of SFV rates is to spread
evenly throughout the year AGLC’s recovery of its delivery
service costs.

Currently, AGLC bills the marketer for each residential
customer’s annual SFV capacity in equal monthly
installments. As required by the GPSC, effective
February 1, 2001, AGLC will implement a seasonal rate
design for the calculation of each residential customer’s
annual SFV capacity charge, which is billed to certificated
marketers and reflects the historic volumetric usage pattern
for the entire residential class. Generally, this change should
result in residential customers being billed by the
certificated marketers for a higher capacity charge in the
winter months, and a lower charge in the summer months.
AGLC will continue to recognize its residential SFV
capacity revenues for financial reporting purposes as it
has historically. Any difference between the billings under
the new seasonal rate design and the SFV revenue
recognized will be deferred and reconciled on an annual
basis. (See Transition to Competition and State Regulatory
Activity sections under Financial Condition, as well as
Note 2. Impact of Deregulation.)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In this section, the results of operations for fiscal 2000,
1999, and 1998 are compared. AGL Resources’ fiscal
year ends on September 30.

FISCAL 2000 COMPARED WITH FISCAL 1999

Operating Margin Analysis
(Dollars in Millions)

September 30, Favorable/
2000 1999 (Unfavorable)

Operating Revenues
Utility $571.9 $1,041.3 $(469.4) (45.1%)
Non-utility 35.5 29.4 6.1 20.7
Total $607.4 $1,070.7 $(463.3) (43.3%)

Cost of Sales
Utility $102.6 $ 536.7 $ 434.1 80.9%
Non-utility 9.3 8.0 (1.3) (16.3)
Total $111.9 $ 544.7 $ 432.8 79.5%

Operating Margin
Utility $469.3 $ 504.6 $ (35.3) (7.0%)
Non-utility 26.2 21.4 4.8 22.4
Total $495.5 $ 526.0 $ (30.5) (5.8%)

OPERATING REVENUES

Operating revenues for fiscal 2000 decreased to $607.4
million from $1,070.7 million for fiscal 1999, a decrease 
of 43.3%.

Utility. Utility operating revenues decreased to $571.9
million for fiscal 2000 from $1,041.3 million for fiscal
1999. The decrease of $469.4 million was primarily due
to the following factors:

• Pursuant to the Deregulation Act, Georgia customers
began to switch from AGLC to certificated marketers
for natural gas purchases beginning November 1,
1998. As of October 1, 1999, except for isolated
circumstances, all of AGLC’s approximately 1.4 million
Georgia customers had switched to or had been
assigned to certificated marketers. As a result, AGLC
sold less gas. The reduction in gas sold resulted in a
net decrease of $451.3 million in operating revenues
resulting from the effect of customer migration to
certificated marketers. Historically, AGLC recovered
its actual gas costs, including carrying costs related to
storage of gas inventories, from its customers;

• Chattanooga’s operating revenues increased $19.7
million as a result of higher off-system sales than
the prior year and as a result of higher natural gas
commodity costs; and 
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• A decrease of $29.2 million in delivery service revenue
due to the loss of ancillary service revenues and certain
transition revenues. Additionally, AGLC’s late payment
fee revenue from end-use customers decreased $15.9
million. These decreases were primarily due to the
fact that AGLC is no longer billing end-use customers,
and were partially offset by revenue increases of $10.9
million related to end-use customer growth and $2.9
million attributable to billing for damage caused by
independent contractors.

Non-utility. Non-utility operating revenues increased to
$35.5 million for fiscal 2000 from $29.4 million for fiscal
1999. The increase of $6.1 million was primarily due to
an increase in Utilipro’s operating revenues as a result
of increased demand for its customer care services.

COST OF SALES

Cost of sales for fiscal 2000 decreased to $111.9 million
for fiscal 1999 from $544.7 million for fiscal 1999, a
decrease of 79.5%. 

Utility. The utility’s cost of sales decreased to $102.6 million
for fiscal 2000 from $536.7 million for fiscal 1999. The
decrease of $434.1 million in the utility’s cost of sales was
primarily due to the following factors:

• Pursuant to the Deregulation Act, Georgia customers
began to switch from AGLC to certificated marketers
for natural gas purchases beginning November 1,
1998. As of October 1, 1999, except for isolated
circumstances, all of AGLC’s approximately 1.4
million Georgia customers had switched to or had
been assigned to certificated marketers. As a result,
AGLC sold less gas. The reduction in gas sold resulted
in a net decrease of $451.3 million in the cost of gas
sold to end-use customers resulting from the effect
of customer migration to certificated marketers.
Historically, AGLC recovered its actual gas costs,
including carrying costs related to storage of gas
inventories, from its customers; and

• Chattanooga’s cost of sales increased $17.2 million as a
result of higher off-system sales than the prior year
and as a result of higher natural gas commodity costs.

Non-utility. Non-utility cost of sales increased to $9.3
million for fiscal 2000 from $8.0 million for fiscal 1999.
The increase of $1.3 million was primarily due to an
increase in the cost of propane as compared to fiscal 1999.

OPERATING MARGIN

Operating margin for fiscal 2000 decreased to $495.5
million from $526.0 million for fiscal 1999, a decrease
of 5.8%.

Utility. The utility’s operating margin decreased to
$469.3 million for fiscal 2000 from $504.6 million for
fiscal 1999, which was the result of the factors noted
above. The operating margin as a percentage of operating
revenues increased to 82.1% from 48.5%. This increase
was primarily due to the net change in gas sales and
cost of sales resulting from deregulation.

Non-utility. Non-utility operating margin increased to
$26.2 million for fiscal 2000 from $21.4 million for fiscal
1999, an increase of 22.4%. The increase of $4.8 million
was the result of the factors noted above.

TOTAL OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Total other operating expenses for fiscal 2000 decreased
to $357.7 million from $371.4 million for fiscal 1999, a
decrease of 3.7%. 

Total Other Operating Margin Analysis
(Dollars in Millions)

September 30, Favorable/
2000 1999 (Unfavorable)

Total Other 
Operating Expenses

Utility $323.9 $349.0 $ 25.1 7.2%
Non-utility 33.8 22.4 (11.4) (50.9)
Total $357.7 $371.4 $ 13.7 3.7%

Utility. Utility total other operating expenses for fiscal
2000 decreased $25.1 million as compared with fiscal
1999 due to the reduction in staffing levels of approximately
500 people, the implementation of cost controls, work
management process improvements and other operational
excellence initiatives. The decrease was primarily reflected
in the following areas:
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• A decrease of $16.2 million in customer service
expense related to billing, bill inquiry, payment
processing and collection services resulting from the
migration of customers to certificated marketers; and

• A decrease of $13.8 million related to maintenance
and benefit expenses as a result of reduced staffing
levels as discussed above.

Non-utility. Non-utility total other operating expenses for
fiscal 2000 increased $11.4 million as compared with fiscal
1999 primarily due to certain one-time charges related to
corporate reorganization, one-time charges related to
marketer billing issues, and an increase in Utilipro’s
operating expenses caused by increased demand for 
its services. As a result of slower than expected
implementation of gas and electric utility deregulation
throughout North America, Utilipro’s growth opportunities
have been less than originally anticipated. As a result,
management continues to review Utilipro’s business model
in an effort to maximize long-term shareholder value.

CORPORATE REORGANIZATION

AGL Resources undertook an operational excellence project
during fiscal 2000. The goal was to improve productivity
and profitability through internal operational activity
reassessment supported with external benchmarks. The
project concluded prior to September 30, 2000, and
resulted in AGL Resources reorganizing various functions
and identifying specific positions to be eliminated. A
one-time pre-tax charge of $6.3 million was recorded in
the fourth quarter in fiscal 2000.

OTHER INCOME (LOSS)

Other income totaled $15.1 million for fiscal 2000,
compared with other losses of $17.6 million for fiscal
1999. The increase in other income of $32.7 million 
was primarily due to the following factors:

• AGL Resources’ portion of SouthStar’s income
increased to $6.3 million from a loss of $14.2 million,
an increase of $20.5 million. The improved
performance by SouthStar was primarily due to an
increase in customers served and lower marketing
expenses, compared to the same period last year; and

• During fiscal 1999, AGL Resources recorded pre-tax
losses related to the operations of Sonat Marketing
Company L.P. (“Sonat Marketing”) totaling
approximately $8.4 million. AGL Resources sold 
its interest in Sonat Marketing during the fourth
quarter of fiscal 1999.

GAIN ON SALES OF JOINT VENTURE INTERESTS

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 1999, a pre-tax gain
of $35.6 million was recorded in connection with the
sales of AGL Resources’ joint venture interests in Sonat
Marketing and Sonat Power Marketing L.P. (“Sonat
Power Marketing”). The interests in Sonat Marketing
and Sonat Power Marketing were sold for $40.0 million
and $25.0 million, respectively.

GAIN ON PROPANE TRANSACTION

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, a pre-tax gain of
$13.1 million was recorded in connection with a series of
transactions involving AGL Resources’ propane operations.

INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense decreased to $51.6 million for fiscal
2000 from $53.0 million for fiscal 1999. The decrease
of $1.4 million was primarily due to the following:

• A decrease of $3.0 million resulting from decreased
amounts of long-term debt outstanding during 
the period;

• A decrease of $1.3 million resulting from decreased
amounts of customer deposits;

• A decrease of $1.3 million resulting from increased
Allowance for Funds Used During Construction
(“AFUDC”) due to increased construction of plant for
the Pipeline Replacement Program; and

• An increase of $4.2 million due to more short-term
debt outstanding primarily as a result of the stock
repurchases.
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INCOME TAXES 

Income taxes decreased to $37.2 million for fiscal 2000
from $39.1 million for fiscal 1999. The effective tax rate
(income tax expense expressed as a percentage of pre-tax
income) for fiscal 2000 was 34.4% as compared to 34.5%
for fiscal 1999.

Net Income, Earnings per Common Share,
and Dividends per Common Share:

Basic Earnings Diluted Earnings Dividends 
per Common per Common per Common 

Fiscal Year Net Income Share Share Share

2000 $71.1 million $1.29 $1.29 $1.08 
1999 $74.4 million $1.30 $1.29 $1.08 

NET INCOME AND EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

Net income for fiscal 2000 was $71.1 million compared
with $74.4 million in fiscal 1999, a decrease of 4.4%.
The decrease is primarily due to the following factors:

• Loss of ancillary services and transition revenues; 
• Decrease in late payment fees; partially offset by 
• Increased other income from operations resulting

from AGL Resources’ interest in SouthStar.

These decreases were partially offset by the gains
recognized on the sales of the joint venture interests in
Sonat Marketing and Sonat Power Marketing in fiscal
1999, and by the gain recognized on the propane
transaction in fiscal 2000.

Basic earnings per common share in fiscal 2000 were
$1.29 compared with $1.30 in fiscal 1999. The basic
weighted average number of common shares outstanding
decreased to 55.2 million from 57.4 million. Diluted
earnings per common share in fiscal 2000 and fiscal
1999 were $1.29. The diluted weighted average number
of common shares and common share equivalents
outstanding decreased to 55.2 million from 57.4 million.

CORE EARNINGS

For fiscal 2000, core earnings (net income excluding one-
time items), excludes the gain on the propane transaction,
charges associated with the corporate reorganization,
and charges related to marketer billing issues, and were
$68.6 million or $1.24 per share. For fiscal 1999, core
earnings, which exclude the gain on the sale of AGL
Resources’ interests in Sonat Marketing and Sonat Power
Marketing, were $52.1 million or $0.91 per share. The
increase in core earnings of $16.5 million resulted from
a $20.7 million decrease in total operating expenses
primarily in utility operations, a $20.5 million increase
in SouthStar’s income, an increase in other income of
approximately $8.4 million from Sonat Marketing operating
losses during fiscal 1999, partially offset by a $28.4 million
operating margin decrease resulting from customer
migration to certified marketers.
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FISCAL 1999 COMPARED WITH FISCAL 1998

Operating Margin Analysis
(Dollars in Millions)

September 30, Favorable/
1999 1998 (Unfavorable)

Operating Revenues
Utility $1,041.3 $1,276.3 $(235.0) (18.4%)
Non-utility 29.4 63.8 (34.4) (53.9)
Total $1,070.7 $1,340.1 $(269.4) (20.1%)

Cost of Sales
Utility $ 536.7 $ 747.6 $ 210.9 28.2%
Non-utility 8.0 48.4 40.4 83.5
Total $ 544.7 $ 796.0 $ 251.3 31.6%

Operating Margin
Utility $ 504.6 $ 528.7 $ (24.1) (4.6%)
Non-utility 21.4 15.4 6.0 39.0
Total $ 526.0 $ 544.1 $ (18.1) (3.3%)

OPERATING REVENUES

Operating revenues for fiscal 1999 decreased to $1,070.7
million from $1,340.1 million for fiscal 1998, a decrease
of 20.1%.

Utility. Utility operating revenues decreased to $1,041.3
million for fiscal 1999 from $1,276.3 million for fiscal
1998. The decrease of $235.0 million was primarily due
to the following factors:

• Beginning November 1, 1998, customers began to
switch from AGLC to certificated marketers for
natural gas purchases as a result of the deregulation
of natural gas commodity sales in Georgia. As of
September 30, 1999, approximately 1.2 million
customers (approximately 82% of AGLC’s total
customers) had switched to a certificated marketer
and, as a result, AGLC sold less gas. The remaining
customers switched during the first quarter of fiscal
2000. The reduction in gas sold resulted in a decrease
of $210.9 million in the utility’s sales service revenues
and a comparable decrease in the utility’s gas costs.
(See Utility section under Cost of Sales for a breakdown
of the key components of this amount.); 

• A decrease of $38.6 million in delivery service revenue
due to the loss of ancillary service revenues and certain
transition revenues. Transition revenues decreased
$15.8 million due to customer migration to certificated
marketers. The remaining decrease of $22.8 million was
primarily due to the timing of the implementation of
the new SFV rate structure for AGLC delivery service
that became effective during the fourth quarter 
of fiscal 1998. (See Overview of the Transition in
Georgia from a Regulated to a Competitive Business
Environment section under Nature of Our
Business.); and

• A decrease of $6.4 million in revenue associated
with AGLC’s Integrated Resource Plan (“IRP”), which
was phased out during fiscal 1998. Previously,
AGLC passed IRP expenses incurred through to its
customers, which were reflected in revenue on a
dollar-for-dollar basis, and were included in operating
expenses. Therefore, the phase out of IRP had no
effect on net income.

These decreases were partially offset by: 
• An increase in AGLC’s late payment fee revenue from

end-use customers of $13.5 million. The increase was
primarily due to the late payment fee structure that
became effective July 1, 1998, as part of the transition
to competition; and

• AGLC recovered carrying costs related to storage gas
inventories of $6.6 million in fiscal 1999 from its
customers within the parameters of the January 26,
1999 joint stipulation agreement with the GPSC and
recorded these recovered carrying costs in operating
revenue. During fiscal 1998, the recovered carrying
costs from AGLC’s customers of $5.4 million were
recorded as other income. (See Note 2. Impact of
Deregulation.)

Non-utility. Non-utility operating revenues decreased to
$29.4 million for fiscal 1999 from $63.8 million for fiscal
1998. The decrease of $34.4 million was primarily due to
the following factors:

• A decrease in revenues of $38.0 million primarily
attributable to a change from consolidation of a wholly
owned subsidiary to the equity method for AGL
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Resources’ joint venture interest in SouthStar. Prior
to the formation of the SouthStar joint venture in
July 1998, AGL Resources was engaged in a similar
business through a wholly owned subsidiary. Upon
the formation of SouthStar, the customers and
operations of the former wholly owned subsidiary
became the customers and operations of SouthStar.
Prior to July 1998, the results of operations of the
former wholly owned subsidiary were reported on
a consolidated basis. In contrast, the results
attributable to AGL Resources’ joint venture interest
in SouthStar were accounted for using the equity
method during fiscal 1999. AGL Resources’ portion
of SouthStar’s results of operations is included in Other
Income (Loss) on the Statements of Consolidated
Income for the year ended September 30, 1999; and

• A decrease in propane operating revenue of $3.4
million due to lower sales attributable to warmer
than normal weather during the winter months.

The decrease in non-utility operating revenues was
partially offset by increased revenues from Utilipro,
resulting from the rapid customer growth experienced
by Georgia’s certificated marketers during fiscal 1999.
Utilipro’s revenues increased to $9.7 million in fiscal 1999
from $0.7 million in fiscal 1998.

COST OF SALES

Cost of sales for fiscal 1999 decreased to $544.7 million
from $796.0 million for fiscal 1998, a decrease of 31.6%. 

Utility. The utility’s cost of sales decreased to $536.7
million for fiscal 1999 from $747.6 million for fiscal
1998. The decrease of $210.9 million in the utility’s cost
of sales was primarily due to the following factors:

• A decrease of $247.5 million in the cost of gas sold to
end-use customers resulting from customer migration
to certificated marketers. AGLC recovered its actual
gas costs, including carrying costs related to storage
gas inventories, from its customers within the
parameters of the January 26, 1999 joint stipulation
agreement with the GPSC;

• A decrease of $13.2 million associated with reduced
levels of gas sold outside of the utility’s distribution
system; and

• A decrease of $12.7 million in cost of gas sold in
Chattanooga as a result of weather that was warmer
than the prior year.

These decreases were partially offset by an increase of
$62.4 million resulting from sales of gas inventory to
certificated marketers. 

Non-utility. Non-utility cost of sales decreased to $8.0
million for fiscal 1999 from $48.4 million for fiscal 1998.
The decrease of $40.4 million was primarily due to the
following factors:

• A decrease of $36.6 million attributable to the change
in accounting from consolidation of a wholly owned
subsidiary to the equity method for SouthStar as
described above. (See Non-utility section under
Operating Revenues.); and

• A decrease in cost of propane of $3.3 million due to
lower sales attributable to warmer than normal weather
during the winter months.

OPERATING MARGIN

Operating margin for fiscal 1999 decreased to $526.0
million from $544.1 million for fiscal 1998, a decrease
of 3.3%.

Utility. The utility’s operating margin decreased to $504.6
million for fiscal 1999 from $528.7 million for fiscal 1998.
The decrease of $24.1 million was primarily due to the
following factors, as also discussed above in the Utility
section under Operating Revenues:

• A decrease of $38.6 million in delivery service revenue
due to the loss of ancillary service revenues and certain
transition revenues. Transition revenues decreased
$15.8 million due to customer migration to certificated
marketers. The remaining decrease of $22.8 million
was primarily due to the timing of the implementation
of the new SFV rate structure for AGLC delivery
service that became effective during the fourth quarter
of fiscal 1998. (See Overview of the Transition in
Georgia from a Regulated to a Competitive Business
Environment section under Nature of Our
Business.); and 
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• A decrease of $6.4 million in revenue associated with
AGLC’s IRP that was phased out during fiscal 1998.
Previously, AGLC passed IRP expenses incurred
through to its customers, which were reflected in
revenue on a dollar-for-dollar basis, and were included
in operating expenses. Therefore, the phase out of IRP
had no effect on net income.

These decreases were partially offset by: 
• An increase in AGLC’s late payment fee revenue from

end-use customers of $13.5 million. The increase was
primarily due to the late payment fee structure that
became effective July 1, 1998, as part of the transition
to competition; and 

• AGLC recovered carrying costs related to storage gas
inventories of $6.6 million in fiscal 1999 from its
customers within the parameters of the January 26,
1999 joint stipulation agreement with the GPSC and
recorded these recovered carrying costs in operating
revenue. During fiscal 1998, the recovered carrying
costs from AGLC’s customers of $5.4 million were
recorded as other income. (See Note 2. Impact of
Deregulation.)

Non-utility. Non-utility operating margin increased to
$21.4 million for fiscal 1999 from $15.4 million for fiscal
1998, an increase of 39.0%. The increase is primarily due
to increased margins for Utilipro. Utilipro had increased
revenues of $9.0 million in fiscal 1999, as compared with
fiscal 1998, due to the rapid customer growth experienced
by Georgia’s certificated marketers. Because Utilipro is
a service company, its expenses are included in other
operating expenses. Therefore, the increase in operating
revenues, without a corresponding increase in cost of
sales, resulted in the increase of operating margin for fiscal
1999, as compared with fiscal 1998. The increase was
partially offset by a decrease of $1.4 million attributable
to the change in accounting from consolidation of a
wholly owned subsidiary to the equity method for
SouthStar as described above. (See Non-utility section
under Operating Revenues.)

TOTAL OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Total other operating expenses for fiscal 1999 decreased
to $371.4 million from $376.5 million for fiscal 1998, a
decrease of 1.4%. 

Total Other Operating Expenses Analysis
(Dollars in Millions)

September 30, Favorable/
1999 1998 (Unfavorable)

Total Other 
Operating Expenses

Utility $349.0 $354.0 $5.0 1.4%
Non-utility 22.4 22.5 0.1 –
Total $371.4 $376.5 $ 5.1 1.4%

Utility. The utility’s total other operating expenses for
fiscal 1999 decreased $5.0 million, as compared with
fiscal 1998, primarily due to the following factors:

• A decrease of $6.7 million associated with non-cash,
nonrecurring charges in fiscal 1998, including the
write-off of the IRP asset of $3.1 million, due to
management’s decision not to seek recovery for certain
deferred expenses. Additionally, a loss of $3.6 million
was reported as a result of the impairment of certain
assets no longer useful, primarily due to changes in
the utility’s information technology systems strategy;

• A decrease of $6.4 million in expenses associated with
AGLC’s IRP, which was phased out during fiscal 1998.
Previously, AGLC passed IRP expenses incurred
through to its customers, on a dollar-for-dollar basis,
and were included in operating expenses. Therefore,
the phase out of IRP had no effect on net income; and

• A decrease of $3.1 million in taxes other than
income taxes primarily due to a decrease in
assessed property values.
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These decreases were partially offset by: 
• An increase of $5.7 million in expenses primarily due

to increased demand for customer service associated
with the more rapid than expected pace of customer
migration to certificated marketers;

• An increase of $3.7 million in depreciation and
amortization expenses primarily due to increased
depreciable property and increased depreciation
rates for AGLC as ordered by the GPSC; and 

• An increase of $2.6 million in maintenance expenses
associated with AGLC’s accelerated pipeline
replacement program. (See AGLC Pipeline Safety
section under State Regulatory Activity.)

Non-utility. Non-utility total other operating expenses
for fiscal 1999 decreased $0.1 million, as compared with
fiscal 1998, primarily due to the following factors:

• Nonrecurring charges of $7.2 million in fiscal 1998
associated with the impairment of certain assets; and

• Decreased operation expenses of $5.7 million for
SouthStar due to the change in accounting from
consolidation of a wholly owned subsidiary to the
equity method for SouthStar as described above.
(See Non-utility section under Operating Revenues.)

These decreases were partially offset by the following
factors:

• Increased operation expenses of $12.0 million for
fiscal 1999, as compared to fiscal 1998, for Utilipro
resulting from increased demand for services as
discussed above. (See Non-utility section under
Operating Margin.); 

• Increased depreciation and amortization expenses
of $4.0 million in fiscal 1999 due to increases in
depreciable property and depreciation rates for data
processing equipment, as ordered by the GPSC; and

• Decreased expenses of $3.7 million in fiscal 1999
resulting from a reduction in payroll expense.

OTHER INCOME (LOSS)

Other losses totaled $17.6 million for fiscal 1999
compared with other income of $12.9 million for fiscal
1998. The decrease in other income of $30.5 million is
primarily due to:

• AGL Resources’ portion of the operating loss for Sonat
Marketing, a joint venture in which, until August 12,
1999, AGL Resources owned a 35% interest. The
operating loss by Sonat Marketing was the result 
of a combination of weather that was significantly
warmer than in the prior year and charges recorded
by Sonat Marketing throughout 1999. AGL Resources
recorded a pre-tax loss related to its interest in Sonat
Marketing of approximately $8.4 million for fiscal
1999, a decrease of $13.0 million as compared with
pre-tax income of approximately $4.6 million for
fiscal 1998;

• AGL Resources’ portion of SouthStar’s losses increased
by $13.0 million primarily due to AGL Resources’
portion of SouthStar’s start-up costs of approximately
$14.2 million for fiscal 1999, as compared to $1.2
million for fiscal 1998. The start-up costs were
associated with establishing market share in Georgia’s
deregulated natural gas market; and 

• The recovery from AGLC’s customers in fiscal 1998
of $5.4 million in carrying costs related to storage
gas inventories. During fiscal 1999, AGLC recovered
carrying costs related to storage gas inventories of
$6.6 million from its customers within the parameters
of the January 26, 1999 joint stipulation agreement
with the GPSC and recorded these recovered carrying
costs in operating revenues. 

GAIN ON SALES OF JOINT VENTURE INTERESTS

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 1999, a pre-tax gain
of $35.6 million was recorded in connection with the
sales of AGL Resources’ joint venture interests in Sonat
Marketing and Sonat Power Marketing. The interests in
Sonat Marketing and Sonat Power Marketing were sold
for $40.0 million and $25.0 million, respectively.
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INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense decreased $1.4 million in fiscal 1999,
compared with fiscal 1998, primarily due to decreased
amounts of outstanding debt and decreased interest on
customer deposits of $0.6 million as a result of customer
migration to certificated marketers.

DIVIDENDS ON PREFERRED STOCK OF SUBSIDIARY

Dividends on preferred stock of subsidiary decreased
$0.6 million in fiscal 1999 compared with fiscal 1998. The
decrease was due to the redemption on December 1, 1997,
of all of AGLC’s 7.70% Series depository preferred stock.

INCOME TAXES

Income taxes increased to $39.1 million for fiscal 1999
from $38.8 million for fiscal 1998. The effective tax rate
(income tax expense expressed as a percentage of pre-
tax income) for fiscal 1999 was 34.5%, as compared to
32.5% for fiscal 1998. The fiscal 1999 increases in income
taxes and effective tax rate were due primarily to the
contribution of certain assets to a private charitable
foundation in fiscal 1998. This contribution resulted in
a lower effective tax rate for fiscal 1998. (See Note 3.
Income Taxes.) 

Net Income, Earnings per Common Share,
and Dividends per Common Share:

Basic Earnings Diluted Earnings Dividends 
per Common per Common per Common 

Fiscal Year Net Income Share Share Share

1999 $74.4 million $1.30 $1.29 $1.08 
1998 $80.6 million $1.41 $1.41 $1.08 

NET INCOME AND EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

Net income for fiscal 1999 was $74.4 million compared
with $80.6 million in fiscal 1998, a decrease of 7.7%.
The decrease is primarily due to the following factors:

• Decreased utility operating margin resulting from
the migration of customers to certificated marketers; 

• Loss of ancillary services and transition revenues
without a corresponding reduction in operating costs; 

• Decreased other income from operations resulting
from AGL Resources’ joint venture interests in Sonat
Marketing and Sonat Power Marketing; and 

• Start-up costs of SouthStar and Utilipro.

These decreases were partially offset by the gains
recognized on the sales of the joint venture interests 
in Sonat Marketing and Sonat Power Marketing.

Basic earnings per common share in fiscal 1999 were
$1.30 compared with $1.41 in fiscal 1998. The basic
weighted average number of common shares outstanding
increased to 57.4 million from 57.0 million. Diluted
earnings per common share in fiscal 1999 were $1.29
compared with $1.41 in fiscal 1998. The diluted weighted
average number of common shares and common share
equivalents outstanding increased to 57.4 million from
57.1 million. 

CORE EARNINGS

For fiscal 1999, core earnings (net income excluding one-
time items), which exclude the gain on the sale of AGL
Resources’ interests in Sonat Marketing and Sonat Power
Marketing, were $52.1 million or $0.91 per share. For fiscal
1998, core earnings, which exclude a write-down related
to impaired assets, were $89.1 million or $1.56 per share.
The decrease is attributable to the following factors:

• Operating margin decreased $18.7 million primarily
due to customer migration to certificated marketers
partially offset by late payment fee revenue and
carrying cost revenue; 

• Total operating expense increased $8.2 million
primarily as a result of increased customer service
expenses related to deregulation and increased
depreciation and amortization on depreciable
property; and

• AGL Resources’ income from SouthStar decreased
$13.0 million, as a result of start-up costs related to
establishing SouthStar’s market share in Georgia’s
deregulated gas market.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

Transition to Competition

The regulated rate structure under which AGLC unbundled
its gas sales and delivery service assumed that AGLC’s costs
associated with providing customer service decreased each
time a customer switched to a certificated marketer for gas
sales service, and such costs would be eliminated at the
time the switch was made. In fact, a significant portion
of the costs associated with customer service activities
(“ancillary services”), including billing, bill inquiry,
payment processing and collection services, could not be
eliminated for a period of up to several months, during
which AGLC continued to incur these expenses. The
accelerated pace of customer migration to certificated
marketers also required AGLC to incur additional customer
service expenses, not originally provided for in regulated
rates, in order to maintain a high level of customer service
during the transition to competition. During fiscal 2000,
AGLC aggressively pursued the elimination of these
expenses by implementing various cost reduction and
operational excellence initiatives.

The Deregulation Act authorizes an electing distribution
company, like AGLC, to recover prudently incurred costs
that are found by the GPSC to be “stranded” as a result
of the transition to competition, and necessary to provide
a reasonable return on common stockholders’ equity. On
June 25, 1999, AGLC filed a request with the GPSC for
an accounting order (“Order”), which allowed AGLC 
to defer transition costs that are considered by AGLC 
to be “stranded.” The Order, which was approved on
October 19, 1999, allowed AGLC to defer these costs, 
if such costs were incurred from October 1, 1999 to
September 30, 2000, and for which recovery is necessary
in order for AGLC to earn its 11.00% authorized return
on common stockholders’ equity. In order to be deferred,
the cost must also be one that:

• AGLC is still incurring but, as a result of deregulation,
is no longer receiving revenue from the rate or rates
which were set based on that cost; 

• Is prudently incurred; and
• Cannot be mitigated.

During fiscal 2000, AGLC deferred approximately $10
million of transition to competition costs, and a
corresponding accumulated deferred income tax liability
of $1.6 million. Of the total transition to competition costs,
AGLC amortized $2 million in fiscal 2000, leaving a net
balance of $6.4 million at September 30, 2000.

SEASONALITY OF BUSINESS

Historically, the utility business has been seasonal in
nature, resulting in a substantial increase in accounts
receivable due to higher billings during colder weather.
As a result of deregulation and the implementation of
SFV rates, the seasonality of both expenses and revenues
related to AGLC’s Georgia operations has been eliminated.
However, the operations of SouthStar, Chattanooga, and
VNG are seasonal, and those entities will likely experience
greater profitability in the winter months than in the
summer months. (See Note 2. Impact of Deregulation.)

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

AGLC has concentration of credit risk related to the
provision of services to certificated marketers. At
September 30, 1998, AGLC billed approximately 1.4
million end-use customers in Georgia for its services.
In contrast, at September 30, 2000, AGLC billed 12
certificated and active marketers in Georgia for services,
who, in turn, billed end-use customers. 

Several factors are designed to mitigate the risks to AGL
Resources of the increased concentration of credit that has
resulted from deregulation. First, in order to obtain a
certificate from the GPSC, a certificated marketer must
demonstrate to the GPSC, among other things, that it
possesses satisfactory financial and technical capability
to render the certificated service. Second, AGLC has
instituted certain practices and imposed certain
requirements designed to reduce credit risk. These include:

• Pursuant to AGLC’s tariff, each certificated marketer
is required to maintain security for its obligations to
AGLC in an amount equal to at least two times the
marketer’s estimated maximum monthly bill and in
the form of a cash deposit, letter of credit, surety bond
or guaranty from a creditworthy guarantor; and 

• Intrastate delivery service is billed in advance rather
than in arrears. 
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For fiscal 2000, the three largest certificated marketers
based on customer count, one of which was SouthStar,
accounted for approximately 69% of AGL Resources’
operating revenues. 

AGLC also faces potential credit risk in connection
with assignments to certificated marketers of interstate
pipeline transportation and storage capacity. Although
AGLC has assigned this capacity to the certificated
marketers, in the event that the certificated marketers fail
to pay the interstate pipelines for the capacity, the interstate
pipelines would in all likelihood seek repayment from
AGLC. This risk is mitigated somewhat by the fact that
the interstate pipelines require the certificated marketers
to maintain security for their obligations to the interstate
pipelines arising out of the assigned capacity.

On October 26, 1999, Peachtree Natural Gas, LLC
(“Peachtree”), the then fifth largest certificated marketer
in Georgia based on customer count, filed for protection
under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code.
As of the date of Peachtree’s bankruptcy filing, Peachtree
owed AGLC approximately $14 million for pre-petition
delivery service and other services and charges. This
amount represented approximately 42% of AGL Resources’
total gas receivables at September 30, 2000. AGLC holds
$11 million of surety bonds as security for Peachtree’s
obligations. The amount owed to AGLC does not include
amounts owed by Peachtree to interstate pipelines for
assigned capacity. Based upon proofs of claim filed by
interstate pipelines in Peachtree’s bankruptcy proceeding,
as of the date of Peachtree’s filing, Peachtree owed interstate
pipelines approximately $2.5 million for assigned capacity.
In December 1999, Shell Energy Services Company, L.L.C.,
began serving the firm customers formerly served by
Peachtree. AGLC has been paid in full for all post-petition
delivery and other services provided by AGLC to
Peachtree. Peachtree has filed a declaratory judgment
action against AGLC to determine who has right, title and
interest in and to approximately $6.2 million, constituting
the proceeds of the sale of certain natural gas inventory.

During fiscal 2000, two other marketers filed for
protection under Chapter 11 of the United States
Bankruptcy Code.

In management’s opinion, these three marketer
bankruptcies will not have a material adverse effect on
AGL Resources’ financial condition or results of operations. 

FINANCING ACTIVITY 

Effective October 10, 2000, AGL Resources became a
registered public utility holding company under
PUHCA, and, as a result, AGL Resources’ financing 
activity is subject to SEC approval.

Capital Securities

In June 1997, AGL Resources established AGL Capital
Trust I (“Trust”), a Delaware business trust. The Trust
issued two types of securities. Common voting securities
were issued to AGL Resources. In addition, the Trust
issued and sold $75.0 million principal amount of 8.17%
Capital Securities to certain initial investors. The Trust used
the proceeds to purchase 8.17% Junior Subordinated
Deferrable Interest Debentures, which are due June 1,
2037, from AGL Resources.

The Capital Securities are subject to mandatory
redemption at the time of the repayment of the Junior
Subordinated Debentures on June 1, 2037, or the optional
prepayment by AGL Resources after May 31, 2007. AGL
Resources fully and unconditionally guarantees all of the
Trust’s obligations for the Capital Securities. AGL Resources
used the net proceeds of approximately $74.0 million from
the sale of the Junior Subordinated Debentures to repay
short-term debt, to redeem some of AGLC’s outstanding
issues of preferred stock, and for other corporate purposes.

Termination of LESOP

As a result of the termination of the Leveraged Employee
Stock Ownership Plan (“LESOP”), AGL Resources
distributed the value of participants’ LESOP account
balances as of June 15, 1999. At the election of the
participants, AGL Resources distributed the value of
each account in one of three forms:

• Direct rollover into the Retirement Savings Plus
Plan (“RSP Plan”) or into another tax-qualified
retirement plan;

• Lump sum payment in the form of a certificate for
shares of AGL Resources common stock; or

• Lump sum cash payment of $18.50 per share.
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As of June 15, 1999, 868,688 LESOP shares were
repurchased by AGL Resources in cash from the LESOP
trustees in a non-brokered transaction at a purchase
price of $18.50 per share and are held as treasury shares.
An additional 236,625 shares were transferred to
participants’ accounts under the RSP Plan from the
respective participants’ accounts in the LESOP.

Common Stock

The following shares of common stock have been issued: 
• 584,284 shares in fiscal 2000;
• 677,411 shares in fiscal 1999; and
• 739,380 shares in fiscal 1998.

The shares of common stock were issued under
ResourcesDirect, a direct stock purchase and dividend
reinvestment plan; the RSP Plan; the Long-Term Stock
Incentive Plan; the Long-Term Incentive Plan; the
Nonqualified Savings Plan; and the Non-Employee
Directors Equity Compensation Plan.

The issuances increased common stockholders’
equity by the following amounts:

• $10.3 million in fiscal 2000;
• $11.7 million in fiscal 1999; and
• $12.9 million in fiscal 1998.

Subsequent to June 15, 1999, shares issued under the
above plans have been issued from shares held in treasury
through this and the LESOP share repurchase program.
During fiscal 2000, AGL Resources repurchased 3.6 million
shares of common stock for a total of $62.1 million pursuant
to a previously announced stock repurchase program.

Long-Term Debt

AGL Resources did not issue long-term debt during 
fiscal 2000 or 1999. The current portion of long-term
debt as of September 30, 2000, is $20.0 million of Series A
medium-term notes with an interest rate of 8.90%.

Short-Term Debt

AGL Resources historically meets its liquidity requirements
through operating cash flow and the issuance of short-
term debt. Short-term lines of credit with various banks
provide for direct borrowings and are subject to annual
renewal. The aggregate borrowing capacity under the
current lines of credit ranges up to $205 million.

Short-term debt increased $139.7 million to $141.2
million as of September 30, 2000, up from $1.5 million
as of September 30, 1999. The increase in short-term
debt from September 30, 1999, was primarily due to
the repayment of $50 million of AGLC’s long-term debt,
which matured during fiscal 2000, and the repurchase
of 3.6 million shares of common stock for a total of
$62.1 million. This short-term debt was refinanced
with commercial paper in October 2000. Management
expects to obtain long-term financing in fiscal 2001 to
replace a portion of the commercial paper.

In connection with the purchase of VNG, AGL Resources
established a $900 million commercial paper program
through AGL Capital Corporation. AGL Resources’
commercial paper consists of short-term unsecured
promissory notes with maturities ranging from overnight
to 270 days. AGL Resources’ commercial paper program
is fully supported by bank back-up credit lines. On
October 6, 2000, AGL Resources issued $660 million in
commercial paper, the proceeds of which were used to
finance the VNG acquisition and to refinance existing
short-term debt.

On October 6, 2000, AGL Resources Inc., and AGL
Capital Corporation entered into a Credit Agreement
with several lenders (“Lenders”) for whom SunTrust
Bank (“SunTrust”) is acting as Administrative Agent.
Pursuant to the Credit Agreement, the Lenders agree to
make available to AGL Capital Corporation, upon demand,
up to $900 million (the “Revolving Commitment”). This
Credit Agreement has been entered into in support of AGL
Resources’ commercial paper program. The Revolving
Commitment may be borrowed, repaid and reborrowed
in the form of Eurodollar loans, adjustable rate loans (based
on SunTrust’s Prime Rate, or based on the Federal Funds
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Effective Rate plus 1%), letters of credit (up to $50
million), or, in certain circumstances, fixed rate loans for
a defined period agreed upon by AGL Capital Corporation
and the Lenders. The Revolving Commitment expires
on October 5, 2001 (the “Revolving Termination Date”).
Loans outstanding on the Revolving Termination Date,
up to a maximum aggregate principal amount of $200
million, may be converted into Term Loans. All Term Loans
will mature in one installment on the date that is one year
from the Revolving Termination Date. Currently, there
are no outstanding loans under the Credit Agreement.

Management believes available credit will be sufficient
to meet working capital needs both on a short-term and
long-term basis. However, capital needs depend on many
factors, and AGL Resources may seek additional financing
through debt or equity offerings in the private or public
markets at any time.

Capital Requirements

Capital expenditures for construction of distribution
facilities, purchase of equipment, and other general
improvements were $157.8 million during fiscal 2000, 
as compared to $147.3 million during fiscal 1999. The
increase of $10.5 million was primarily due to capital
expenditures incurred in fiscal 2000 for the automated
dispatch project.

Typically, funding for capital expenditures is provided
through a combination of internal sources, the issuance
of short-term and long-term debt, and the issuance of
equity securities. AGL Resources’ estimated aggregate
capital requirement for the next three years, ending on
September 30, 2003, is approximately $484.0 million, of
which approximately $145.0 million is attributable to
the pipeline replacement program approved by the GPSC
and approximately $84.0 million is attributable to VNG.

As of September 30, 2000, natural gas stored
underground decreased $19.6 million to $27.7 million
from $47.3 million, primarily due to the assignment
of natural gas inventories to certificated marketers in
accordance with the Deregulation Act. (See Inventory
Assignment section under State Regulatory Activity.)

Ratios and Coverages
September 30,

2000 1999 1998

Weighted average cost of 
long-term debt 7.5% 7.5% 7.5%

Weighted average cost 
of preferred stock 8.2% 8.2% 8.1%

Return on average 
common equity 11.1% 11.3% 12.6%

Ratio of earnings to combined 
fixed charges and preferred 
stock dividends(1) 2.61 2.72 2.77

Ratio of earnings to interest 
charges(2) and preferred 
stock dividends 2.81 2.90 2.94

Ratio of earnings to 
interest charges(2) 3.13 3.23 3.30

(1) Fixed charges consist of interest on short-term and long-term debt,

other interest, and the estimated interest components of rentals.

(2) Interest charges exclude the debt portion of allowance for funds

used during construction. 

As of September 30, 2000, our capitalization ratios
consisted of: 

• 45.9% long-term debt; 
• 5.8% preferred securities; and 
• 48.3% common equity. 

The return on average common stockholders’ equity
decreased in fiscal 2000 from fiscal 1999 as a result of
the decrease in net income of $3.3 million.

The ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and
preferred stock dividends, the ratio of earnings to interest
charges and preferred stock dividends, and the ratio of
earnings to fixed charges decreased in fiscal 2000 compared
to fiscal 1999 primarily due to lower earnings. 
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STATE REGULATORY ACTIVITY

In March 2000, the GPSC approved a plan to refund
approximately $35 million (including interest) to retail end-
use customers of certificated marketers, pursuant to the
joint stipulation agreement. The refund had no effect on
AGLC’s earnings, as it was accrued for as Gas Cost Credits
as of September 30, 1999, and was disbursed to customers
by retail marketers during April and May 2000.

The GPSC also approved the disbursement of funds
from the USF totaling $1.3 million to AGLC during the
year ended September 30, 2000, for system expansion
projects in AGLC’s distribution system.

The GPSC also approved a $40 million disbursement
from the USF to residential customers, which will occur
in February and March 2001. These disbursements will
have no effect on AGLC’s earnings.

In addition, the GPSC approved the extension of AGLC’s
pipeline contract with Southern Natural Gas Company
(“Southern”) in April 2000. The extension settles Southern’s
general rate case filing dated September 1, 1999. While
the three-year extension has no effect on the earnings
of AGLC, the new contract will reduce pipeline charges
to marketers who may, in turn, pass the savings on to
their end-use customers.

In addition to approving AGL Resources’ acquisition
of VNG on July 28, 2000, the VSCC issued an order on
September 25, 2000, approving transactions between VNG
and other subsidiaries of AGL Resources. The September
order permits the use of a services company to provide
VNG with shared support services including legal, 
regulatory, finance, accounting, engineering, gas control,
and capacity planning services. Recovery of the costs
associated with such services will continue to be subject
to the rate and regulatory authority of the VSCC.

AGLC Pipeline Safety On January 8, 1998, the GPSC issued
procedures and set a schedule for hearings about alleged
pipeline safety violations. On July 21, 1998, the GPSC
approved a settlement between AGLC and the staff of the
GPSC that details a 10-year pipeline replacement program
for approximately 2,300 miles of cast iron and bare steel
pipe. Over that 10-year period, AGLC will recover from
end-use customers, through billings to certificated
marketers, the costs related to the program net of any
cost savings from the program. 

During fiscal 2000, approximately 248 miles of pipe
were replaced pursuant to the program. During that
period, AGLC’s capital expenditures and operation and
maintenance expenses related to the program were
approximately $49.2 million and $8.4 million, respectively.
All such amounts will be recovered through a combination
of SFV rates and a pipeline safety revenue rider. On
October 1, 1999, AGLC began recovering costs of the
program through the pipeline safety revenue rider. The
amount recovered during fiscal 2000 was approximately
$2.0 million.

Weather Normalization The weather normalization
adjustment rider (“WNAR”), authorized by the TRA to
offset the impact of unusually cold or warm weather on
customer billings and operating margin, remains in effect
for Chattanooga. The WNAR in effect for AGLC was
discontinued when the SFV rate structure became effective
on June 30, 1998, since the annual revenues collected
through SFV rates do not vary with changes in the
weather. (See Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies.)

Inventory Assignment Pursuant to the Deregulation
Act, certificated marketers, including AGLC’s marketing
affiliate, began selling natural gas to firm end-use
customers at market-based prices in November 1998.
Part of the unbundling process is the allocation of certain
pipeline services that AGLC has under contract, including
interstate pipeline transportation and gas storage. 
In particular, AGLC has allocated the majority of its
pipeline storage services that it has under contract to the
certificated marketers, along with a corresponding amount
of inventory based on the respective market share of the
certificated marketers. Following the rules of AGLC’s tariff,
the sale price was the weighted average cost of the storage
inventory at the time of sale. AGLC changed its inventory
costing method for its gas inventories from first-in, first-
out to weighted average effective October 1, 1998. The
weighted average cost-flow assumption provides for a more
equitable pricing method for the sale of gas inventories
to certificated marketers. 

As of September 30, 2000, AGLC had $19.7 million
in gas storage. This amount represents AGLC’s retained
storage, which represents the underground storage
capacity retained by AGLC to balance temporary
differences between certificated marketers’ expected
and actual demand.
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Regulatory Accounting AGL Resources has recorded
regulatory assets and liabilities in its Consolidated Balance
Sheets, in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 71, “Accounting for the
Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.”

In July 1997, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”)
concluded that once legislation is passed to deregulate
a segment of a utility and that legislation includes
sufficient detail for the enterprise to determine how the
transition plan will affect that segment, SFAS 71 should
be discontinued for that segment of the utility. The EITF
consensus permits assets and liabilities of a deregulated
segment to be retained if they are recoverable through a
segment that remains regulated. 

Georgia has enacted legislation that allows deregulation
of natural gas sales and the separation of some ancillary
services of local natural gas distribution companies.
However, the rates that AGLC, as the local gas distribution
company, charges to transport natural gas through its
intrastate pipe system will continue to be regulated by
the GPSC. Therefore, the continued application of SFAS 71
is appropriate for regulatory assets and liabilities related
to AGLC’s delivery services.

GAS SUPPLY CONTRACTS

In connection with and following AGLC’s exit from the
natural gas sales service function, AGLC terminated
three long-term gas supply contracts, and certain of
these contracts required the payment of an aggregate
of $2.5 million of reservation charges. AGLC was
permitted to utilize the Gas Cost Credits balance to pay
these reservation charges. (See Note 10. Commitments
and Contingencies.)

FEDERAL REGULATORY ACTIVITY

Effective October 10, 2000, AGL Resources became a
registered public utility holding company under PUHCA
and is subject to regulation by the SEC.

FERC Order 637: Transition Costs Settlement Agreements
The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”)
issued Order No. 637 on February 9, 2000, which revises
the FERC’s rules governing the operations of the utility’s
interstate pipeline suppliers. Among other things, the FERC:

• On an experimental basis through September 30, 2002,
permitted holders of firm pipeline capacity to release
the capacity to other customers at a price greater than
the pipeline’s maximum rate for the same capacity;

• Authorized pipelines to propose different rates for
services rendered during periods of peak usage, and
to propose rates that would differ based on the length
of a customer’s contract; and

• Declined, for the present time, to permit pipelines and
their customers to establish individually negotiated
terms and conditions of service that depart from
generally applicable pipeline tariff rules.

On May 19, 2000, the FERC issued order No. 637-A,
granting and denying rehearing in part of order No. 637,
and making clarifying adjustments to its final rule. Among
other things, the FERC clarified that all capacity release
transactions of more than one month must be subject to
posting and bidding as long as waiver of the maximum
rate ceiling is in effect, thereby eliminating the exemption
from posting and bidding that previously applied to certain
transactions, including rollovers of monthly prearranged
capacity release transactions set at the maximum tariff
rate. AGL Resources cannot predict how these revisions
may affect its utility operations.
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The FERC has required the utility, as well as other
interstate pipeline customers, to pay transition costs
associated with the separation of the pipeline suppliers’
transportation and gas supply services. Based on its
pipeline suppliers’ filings with the FERC, the utility has
determined that the total portion of its transition costs
from all of its pipeline suppliers was $108.1 million. As of
September 30, 2000, all of those costs had been incurred
and were being recovered from the utility’s customers
under rates charged for the distribution of gas.

During fiscal 2000, the utility paid $89.9 million in
transition costs to Southern pursuant to a restructuring
settlement that resolves all transition cost issues for
Southern. 

On March 10, 2000, Southern filed a settlement to
resolve all issues arising out of its September 1, 1999
general rate case filing. Among other matters, the
settlement provides for the termination of Southern’s
interstate pipeline affiliate, South Georgia Natural Gas
Company (“South Georgia”), as a separate entity, with
Southern absorbing South Georgia’s facilities and
operations. The settlement rates represent a decrease
of approximately $6 million per year under the utility’s
existing contracts for firm interstate pipeline capacity.
In return for the rate reduction, firm contract holders
were required to extend their existing contracts by three
years. The utility filed comments requesting that the
FERC approve the settlement and the approval was
granted on May 31, 2000.

AGLC is involved in three Transcontinental Gas Pipe
Line Corporation rate cases, which concern rates in effect
since September 1, 1995, as well as proposed changes to
take effect prospectively. These rate proceedings are at
various stages of litigation before the FERC, and none of
these proceedings are final. At the present time, AGLC
cannot predict the effect of these proceedings on rates 
or operations.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Before natural gas was widely available in the Southeast,
AGLC manufactured gas from coal and other fuels. Those
manufacturing operations were known as manufactured
gas plants (“MGP”), which AGLC ceased operating in
the 1950s. Because of recent environmental concerns,
AGLC is required to investigate possible environmental
contamination at those plants and, if necessary, clean
up any contamination. 

AGLC has been associated with nine MGP sites in
Georgia and three in Florida. Based on investigations to
date, AGLC believes that some cleanup is likely at most
of the sites. In Georgia, the state Environmental Protection
Division supervises the investigation and cleanup of
MGP sites. In Florida, the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency has that responsibility.

For each of the MGP sites, AGLC has estimated, where
possible, its share of the likely costs of investigation and
cleanup. AGLC currently estimates that its total future cost
of investigating and cleaning up its MGP sites is between
$111.7 million and $171.8 million. This estimate does not
include other potential expenses, such as unasserted
property damage or personal injury claims, legal expenses
or other costs for which AGLC may be held liable, but
with respect to which the amount can not be reasonably
forecast. Within that range, AGLC cannot identify any
single number as a “better” estimate of its likely future
costs, because its actual future investigation and cleanup
costs will be affected by a number of contingencies that
cannot be quantified at this time. Consequently, as of
September 30, 2000, AGLC has recorded the lower end
of the range, or $111.7 million, as a liability.

AGLC has entered into a contract with ThermoRetec
Consulting Corporation (“ThermoRetec”) for management
of the investigation and cleanup of AGLC’s MGP sites.
Under this contract, AGLC’s former MGP sites are classified
into two categories. Where AGLC is not the primary
responsible party, ThermoRetec will provide management
oversight and coordination between AGLC and other
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responsible parties. At all other sites, ThermoRetec
will provide all services that will eventually result in
cleanup and regulatory finality for those MGP sites
within specified deadlines. With respect to these latter
sites, the agreement between AGLC and ThermoRetec
establishes a performance-based fee arrangement, under
which a portion of ThermoRetec’s compensation is tied
to the relationship between certain specified components
of the cleanup costs and specified benchmarks for those
cost components. Management does not believe the
outsourcing of the management will have a material effect
on the total future cost of investigating and cleaning up
the MGP sites. 

As of September 30, 1999, AGLC had recorded a liability
of $102.4 million. During fiscal 2000, the liability increased
$9.3 million due to revised estimates of future costs, which
resulted in a corresponding increase in the unrecovered
environmental response cost asset.

AGLC has two ways of recovering investigation
and cleanup costs. First, the GPSC has approved an
environmental response cost recovery rider. It allows
the recovery of costs of investigation, testing, cleanup,
and litigation. Because of that rider, AGLC has recorded
a regulatory asset for actual and projected future costs
related to investigation and cleanup, to be recovered
from the rate payers in future years. During fiscal 2000,
AGLC recovered $4.3 million through its environmental
response cost recovery rider.

The second way AGLC can recover costs is by exercising
the legal rights AGLC believes it has to recover a share
of its costs from other potentially responsible parties,
typically former owners or operators of the MGP sites.
AGLC has been actively pursuing those recoveries. There
were no material recoveries during fiscal 2000. 

ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities.” SFAS 133, as amended by SFAS
138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and
Certain Hedging Activities” establishes accounting and
reporting standards for derivative instruments, including
certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts,
and for hedging activities. AGL Resources adopted SFAS
133 on October 1, 2000. The impact of the adoption of
SFAS 133 on AGL Resources’ consolidated financial
statements at October 1, 2000 was immaterial, but could
increase the volatility of earnings in future periods.

COMPETITION

Utility The utility competes with alternative energy
suppliers to distribute natural gas to large commercial
and industrial customers. Those customers can switch
to alternative fuels, including propane, fuel and waste
oils, electricity and, in some cases, combustible wood
by-products. AGLC also competes to distribute gas to
large commercial and industrial customers who seek to
bypass AGLC’s distribution system. 

Pursuant to the GPSC’s rate case order of June 30,
1998, AGLC has been able to price distribution services
to large commercial and industrial customers in one of
three ways: 

• GPSC-approved rates in AGLC’s tariff; 
• Negotiated rates if an existing rate is not priced

competitively with a customer’s competitive
alternative fuel; or

• Special contracts approved by the GPSC. 

Additionally, interruptible customers have the option of
purchasing delivery service directly from certificated
marketers, who are authorized to use capacity on AGLC’s
distribution system that is allocated to the certificated
marketers for firm residential and small commercial
customers, whenever such capacity is not being used for
firm customers. 
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Non-utility AGL Resources engages in several competitive,
energy-related businesses, including gas supply services,
wholesale and retail propane sales, customer care services,
and the sale of energy-related products and services for
residential, commercial, and industrial customers throughout
the Southeast. (See Organizational Structure section
under Nature of Our Business.) 

Unlike the utility, the non-utility businesses are
not regulated. The non-utility businesses typically
face competition from other companies in the same or
similar businesses. 

SouthStar competes with other energy marketers,
including certificated marketers in Georgia, to provide
natural gas and related services to customers in Georgia
and the Southeast. SouthStar began marketing natural
gas to all customers in Georgia during the first quarter
of fiscal 1999. Marketing efforts during the transition
to competition in Georgia consisted of advertising and
promotional campaigns. As of October 1, 2000, SouthStar
had the largest market share among approximately 12
certificated and active marketers in Georgia.

Utilipro competes with other customer care service
providers throughout the United States. Utilipro anticipates
that the number of competitors will increase as energy
markets in the United States become deregulated. 

QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

All financial instruments and positions held by AGL
Resources described below are held for purposes other
than trading. 

AGL Resources’ exposure to market risk related to
changes in interest rates relates primarily to its borrowing
activities. A hypothetical 10% increase or decrease in
interest rates related to AGL Resources’ variable rate debt
($141.2 million outstanding as of September 30, 2000)
would not have a material effect on results of operations
or financial condition over the next 12 months. The fair
value of AGL Resources’ long-term debt and capital
securities also are affected by changes in interest rates.
A hypothetical 10% increase or decrease in interest rates
would not have a material effect on the estimated fair value
of AGL Resources’ long-term debt or capital securities.
Additionally, the fair value of outstanding long-term debt
and capital securities has not materially changed since
September 30, 1999. During fiscal 2000, AGL Resources
repaid $50.0 million of long-term debt. The following
table presents the sensitivity of the fair value of AGL
Resources’ long-term debt and capital securities to a
hypothetical 10% decrease in interest rates as of
September 30:

Estimated Hypothetical
Carrying Fair Increase in

(In Millions) Value Value (a) Fair Value (b)

2000
Long-term debt including 

current portion $ 610.0 $ 577.2 $  34.5
Capital Securities $   74.3 $   65.6 $    7.0

1999
Long-term debt including 

current portion $ 660.0 $ 640.8 $  36.7
Capital Securities $   74.3 $   70.0 $    7.4

(a) Based on quoted market prices for these or similar issues.

(b) Calculated based on the change in discounted cash flow, assuming a

10% decrease in interest rates, as of September 30, 2000 and 1999.
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Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables

Gas (less allowance for uncollectible accounts 
of $3.1 in 2000 and $2.4 in 1999)

Other (less allowance for uncollectible accounts 
of $5.2 in 2000 and $1.9 in 1999) 

Unbilled revenues
Refundable income taxes
Inventories

Natural gas stored underground
Liquefied natural gas
Materials and supplies
Other 

Other current assets
Total current assets

Property, Plant, and Equipment 
Utility plant
Less accumulated depreciation 

Utility plant – net
Non-utility property
Less accumulated depreciation 

Non-utility property – net
Total property, plant, and equipment – net

Deferred Debits and Other Assets
Unrecovered environmental response costs
Investments in joint ventures
Unrecovered postretirement benefits costs
Other 

Total deferred debits and other assets 
Total Assets

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

For the years ended September 30,

2000 1999

$ 2.0

29.9

13.4
1.7
8.1

27.7
2.1
6.2
1.2
7.4

99.7

2,371.5
791.8

1,579.7
88.2
30.4
57.8

1,637.5

164.6
78.8
7.9

31.4
282.7

$ 2,019.9

$ 32.9

36.0

9.8
6.0

–

47.3
6.7
9.3
3.6
7.0

158.6

2,274.3
757.1

1,517.2
116.7
35.0
81.7

1,598.9

150.2
28.2
8.5

26.0
212.9

$ 1,970.4

In Millions
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Current Liabilities
Short-term debt
Accounts payable – trade 
Interest
Current portion of long-term debt
Wages and salaries 
Other accrued liabilities 
Customer deposits 
Gas cost credits 
Other 

Total current liabilities 
Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes
Long-Term Liabilities

Accrued environmental response costs 
Accrued postretirement benefits costs
Accrued pension costs
Capital leases

Total long-term liabilities
Deferred Credits

Unamortized investment tax credit
Regulatory tax liability
Other 

Total deferred credits
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 10 and 12)
Capitalization

Long-term debt
Subsidiary obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities
Common stockholders' equity (See accompanying statements 

of consolidated common stockholders' equity) 
Total capitalization

Total Liabilities and Capitalization

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

For the years ended September 30,

2000 1999

$ 141.2
34.0
21.5
20.0
15.3
20.2
1.8

–
30.8

284.8
249.6

111.7
31.9
6.7
1.0

151.3

23.2
15.5
10.3
49.0

590.0
74.3

620.9
1,285.2

$ 2,019.9

In Millions

$ 1.5
31.3
26.0
50.0
10.5
33.2
7.4

37.9
26.2

224.0
211.3

102.4
32.4
5.3

–
140.1

24.5
16.4
8.3

49.2

610.0
74.3

661.5
1,345.8

$ 1,970.4

A G L  R e s o u r c e s
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Operating Revenues
Cost of Sales 
Operating Margin
Other Operating Expenses

Operation and maintenance 
Depreciation 
Taxes other than income taxes

Total other operating expenses
Operating Income 
Other Income (Loss) 
Gain on Sales of Joint Venture Interests  
Gain on Propane Transaction  
Interest Expense and Preferred Stock Dividends

Interest expense 
Dividends on preferred stock of subsidiary

Total interest expense and preferred stock dividends
Income Before Income Taxes 
Income Taxes 
Net Income

Earnings Per Common Share (Note 1)
Basic
Diluted 

Weighted Average Number of Common Shares 
Outstanding (Note 1)
Basic
Diluted 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

For the years ended September 30,

2000 1999 1998

$ 607.4
111.9
495.5

247.8
83.2
26.7

357.7
137.8
15.1

–
13.1

51.6
6.1

57.7
108.3
37.2

$ 71.1

$ 1.29
$ 1.29

55.2
55.2

$ 1,070.7
544.7
526.0

268.2
78.8
24.4

371.4
154.6
(17.6)
35.6

–

53.0
6.1

59.1
113.5
39.1

$ 74.4

$ 1.30
$ 1.29

57.4
57.4

$ 1,340.1
796.0
544.1

278.0
71.1
27.4

376.5
167.6
12.9

–
–

54.4
6.7

61.1
119.4
38.8

$ 80.6

$ 1.41
$ 1.41

57.0
57.1

In Millions, except per share amounts
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Common Stock
$5 par value; authorized 100.0 shares;

issued, 57.8 in 2000, 57.8 in 1999, and 57.3 in 1998
Beginning of year 

Benefit, stock compensation, stock award forfeitures,
dividend reinvestment, and stock purchase plans 

End of year 
Premium on Common Stock

Beginning of year
Benefit, stock compensation, dividend reinvestment, 

and stock purchase plans
Gain on issuance of treasury stock
Minority interest in capital contributed to subsidiary

End of year
Earnings Reinvested

Beginning of year
Net income
Loss on issuance of treasury stock
Common Stock dividends ($1.08 per share in 2000, 

1999, and 1998)
End of year

Shares Held in Treasury (at cost)
3.8 shares in 2000 and 0.7 shares in 1999
Beginning of year  

Repurchase of shares  
Issuance of treasury stock

End of year
Total Common Stockholders' Equity 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

For the years ended September 30,

2000 1999 1998

$ 289.2

(0.1)
289.1

200.0

–
0.2

–
200.2

186.7
71.1
(0.2)

(59.8)
197.8

(14.4)
(62.1)
10.3

(66.2)
$ 620.9

$ 286.6

2.6
289.2

193.0

7.5
–

(0.5)
200.0

174.5
74.4
(0.1)

(62.1)
186.7

–
(16.1)

1.7
(14.4)

$ 661.5

$ 283.1

3.5
286.6

183.6

9.4
–
–

193.0

155.4
80.6

–

(61.5)
174.5

–
–
–
–

$ 654.1

In Millions
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to

net cash flow from operating activities
Gain on propane transaction
Gain on sale of joint venture interests
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Provision for write-down of assets
Other

Changes in certain assets and liabilities
Receivables
Inventories
Deferred purchase gas adjustment
Gas cost credits
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Environmental response costs – net
Accrued taxes
Other – net
Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net payments and borrowings of short-term debt
Payments of long-term debt
Sale of common stock, net of expenses and non-cash dividends
Redemptions of preferred securities
Purchase of treasury shares
Sale of treasury shares, net of non-cash dividends
Dividends paid on common stock

Net cash used in financing activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Utility plant expenditures
Non-utility property expenditures
Cash received from sale of joint venture interests
Cash received from propane transaction
Net investment in joint ventures
Cash (provided to) received from joint ventures
Other

Net cash used in investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Cash paid during the year for
Interest
Income taxes

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

For the years ended September 30,

2000 1999 1998

$ 71.1

(13.1)
–

84.4
37.1

–
–

(1.3)
29.7
(2.7)

(37.9)
2.7

(5.6)
(5.1)

(13.5)
5.8

151.6

139.7
(50.0)

–
–

(62.1)
1.6

(51.2)
(22.0)

(145.7)
(12.1)

–
9.1

(4.5)
(8.7)
1.4

(160.5)
(30.9)
32.9

$ 2.0

$ 56.1
$ 24.2

$ 74.4

–
(35.6)
81.8
9.0

–
(2.0)

71.0
103.5
(11.7)
37.9

(17.1)
(23.1)
(17.2)
21.1

(25.0)
267.0

(75.0)
–

1.2
–

(16.1)
0.3

(52.8)
(142.4)

(128.7)
(18.6)
65.0

–
(4.4)
1.8

(7.7)
(92.6)
32.0
0.9

$ 32.9

$ 60.5
$ 17.0

$ 80.6

–
–

75.7
11.3
13.9
2.0

(29.6)
13.1
17.4

–
(13.8)

1.3
(12.9)
(9.0)
27.5

177.5

47.0
–

0.9
(44.5)

–
–

(51.6)
(48.2)

(96.7)
(22.5)

–
–

(12.9)
3.0

(4.1)
(133.2)

(3.9)
4.8

$ 0.9

$ 51.5
$ 39.2

In Millions
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Our Business

AGL Resources Inc. is the registered holding company for: 

• Atlanta Gas Light Company (“AGLC”), a natural gas
local distribution utility;

• Chattanooga Gas Company (“Chattanooga”), a natural
gas local distribution utility;

• AGL Energy Services, Inc. (“AGLE”), a gas supply
services company; and

• Several non-utility subsidiaries. 

AGL Resources Inc. and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as “AGL Resources.”

AGLC conducts its primary business, the distribution of
natural gas, in Georgia including Atlanta, Athens, Augusta,
Brunswick, Macon, Rome, Savannah, and Valdosta.
Chattanooga distributes natural gas in the Chattanooga
and Cleveland areas of Tennessee. The Georgia Public
Service Commission (“GPSC”) regulates AGLC, and the
Tennessee Regulatory Authority (“TRA”) regulates
Chattanooga. AGLE is a non-regulated company that
bought and sold the natural gas that was supplied to
AGLC’s customers during the deregulation transition
period to full competition in Georgia. Currently, AGLE
buys and sells natural gas for Chattanooga’s customers.

As of September 30, 2000, AGLC and Chattanooga
comprised substantially all of AGL Resources’ assets,
revenues, and earnings. The operations and activities of
AGLC, AGLE, and Chattanooga, collectively, are referred
to as the “utility.” The utility’s total other operating
expenses include costs allocated from AGL Resources Inc.

As of September 30, 2000, AGL Resources owned or
had an interest in the following non-utility businesses: 

• SouthStar Energy Services LLC (“SouthStar”), a joint
venture among a subsidiary of AGL Resources and
subsidiaries of Dynegy Holdings, Inc. and Piedmont
Natural Gas Company. SouthStar markets natural
gas and related services to residential and small
commercial customers in Georgia and to industrial
customers in the Southeast. SouthStar began marketing
natural gas to customers in Georgia during the first
quarter of fiscal 1999 under the trade name Georgia
Natural Gas Services;

• AGL Investments, Inc., which manages certain non-
utility businesses including: 

• AGL Propane Services, Inc. (“Propane”) has a
22.36% ownership interest in US Propane LLC
(“US Propane”). US Propane owns 34% of
Heritage Propane Partners (“Heritage Propane”)
which engages in the sale of propane and related
products and services in 28 states;

• Utilipro, Inc. (“Utilipro”), in which AGL Resources
has a 91.74% ownership interest and which engages
in the sale of integrated customer care solutions
and billing services to energy marketers in the
United States; and

• AGL Networks, LLC (“AGL Networks”), which
will install, and lease to third-party operators,
conduit and fiber optic cable. AGL Networks was
incorporated on August 15, 2000 for the purpose
of partnering with other telecommunication
companies to serve Atlanta’s rapidly growing
demand for high-speed network capacity.

• AGL Peaking Services, Inc., which owns a 50%
interest in Etowah LNG Company LLC (“Etowah”), a
joint venture with Southern Natural Gas Company.
Etowah was formed for the purpose of constructing,
owning, and operating a liquefied natural gas
peaking facility; and

• AGL Capital Corporation, which was established to
finance the acquisition of Virginia Natural Gas, Inc.
(“VNG”), refinance existing short-term debt and
provide working capital to AGL Resources and its
subsidiaries through a commercial paper program
and other debt facilities.

Virginia Natural Gas

Effective October 1, 2000, AGL Resources acquired all of
the outstanding common stock of VNG, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Consolidated Natural Gas Company and
an indirect subsidiary of Dominion Resources, Inc. The
purchase price of approximately $533 million, paid in
cash, included approximately $4.8 million in working
capital. The Virginia State Corporation Commission
(“VSCC”) regulates VNG.

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase for
financial accounting purposes and as a result VNG’s
operations will be consolidated with AGL Resources
beginning October 1, 2000. The excess purchase price
over the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed was allocated to goodwill, which will be
amortized over 40 years.
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With the addition of VNG’s customer base of
approximately 230,000, AGL Resources is now the second
largest natural gas-only distributor in the United States,
serving nearly 1.8 million customers. VNG is headquartered
in Norfolk, Virginia, and serves customers in the Hampton
Roads region of southeastern Virginia.

Propane Operations

On February 15, 2000, AGL Resources entered into a
definitive agreement to combine its propane operations
with the propane operations of Atmos Energy Corporation,
Piedmont Natural Gas Company, and TECO Energy, Inc.
The joint venture, which is called US Propane,
subsequently combined US Propane’s operations with
Heritage Propane. The transactions were closed on
August 10, 2000. Through these transactions, US Propane
acquired ownership of the general partner, as well as
certain limited partner units, of Heritage Propane, a
master limited partnership that distributes propane to
over 480,000 customers in 28 states. As a result of these
transactions, AGL Resources recognized a pre-tax and after-
tax gain of $13.1 million and $10.7 million, respectively. 

Regulation of the Utility Business

The GPSC and the TRA regulate the utility business with
respect to rates, maintenance of accounting records, and
various other matters. Generally, the same accounting
policies and practices utilized by non-utility companies
are utilized by the utility for financial reporting under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. However, sometimes the GPSC and
the TRA order an accounting treatment different from
that used by non-regulated companies to determine the
rates charged to the utility’s customers. Additionally,
following the consummation of the VNG acquisition, AGL
Resources registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as a holding company under the Public Utility
Holding Company Act of 1935 (“PUHCA”). (See Note 4.
Regulatory Assets and Liabilities.) 

Consolidation Policy

AGL Resources utilizes two different accounting methods
to report its investments in its subsidiaries and other
companies: consolidation and the equity method. 

Consolidation – AGL Resources utilizes the consolidation
method of accounting when it owns a majority of the
voting stock of the subsidiary or if it can otherwise
exercise control over the entity. This means that the
accounts of AGL Resources are combined with the
subsidiaries’ accounts. Additionally, intercompany
balances and transactions are eliminated when the
accounts are consolidated. AGL Resources’ consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of the following
subsidiaries: 

• AGLC; 
• Chattanooga; 
• AGLE; and
• AGL Investments, Inc. and its subsidiaries. 

Utilipro’s assets, liabilities, and earnings are included
in the consolidated financial statements. The outside
investors’ ownership interest is recorded as minority
interest. As of September 30, 2000 and 1999, the minority
interest was immaterial.

The Equity Method – The equity method is utilized to
account for and report corporate joint ventures where
AGL Resources holds a 20% to 50% voting interest, unless
control can be exercised over the entity. Under the equity
method, AGL Resources’ ownership interest in the entity
is reported as an investment within its Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Additionally, AGL Resources’ percentage
ownership in the joint venture’s earnings or losses is
reported in its Statements of Consolidated Income under
“Other Income.” 

AGL Resources utilizes the equity method to account
for and report its investments in the following: 

• US Propane;
• Etowah; and
• SouthStar.
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Revenues

Utility revenues are recorded in AGL Resources’ Statements
of Consolidated Income when services are provided to
customers. Revenues from the utility business are based
on rates approved by the GPSC and the TRA. Those
revenues include estimated amounts for gas delivered,
but not yet billed, for Chattanooga Gas operations.

On July 1, 1998, AGLC began billing for delivery service
under a Straight Fixed Variable (“SFV”) rate structure that
recovers all fixed delivery service costs evenly throughout
the year consistent with the way the costs are incurred.
(See Note 2. Impact of Deregulation.) AGLC bills marketers
on the seventh business day of each month for all fixed
charges to be incurred during the current month and such
bills are due from the marketers ten days later.

The TRA has authorized a weather normalization
adjustment rider (“WNAR”) for Chattanooga. This rider
is designed to offset the impact of unusually cold or warm
weather on customer billings and operating margin.

Non-utility revenues are recorded in AGL Resources’
Statements of Consolidated Income when services are
provided to customers.

Cost of Sales

Chattanooga charges their customers for the natural gas
they consume using purchased gas adjustment (“PGA”)
mechanisms set by the TRA. Under the PGA, Chattanooga
defers (included as a current asset or liability in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and excluded from the
Statements of Consolidated Income) the difference between
the utility’s actual cost of gas and what it collected from
customers in a given period. Then, Chattanooga either
bills or refunds to its customers the deferred amount. 

Effective October 6, 1998, AGLC discontinued the
use of its PGA mechanism in accordance with Georgia’s
deregulation plan. During fiscal 1999, AGLC signed a
joint stipulation agreement with the GPSC that limited the
profit for the period from October 6, 1998 to September 30,
1999 related to the sale of gas to $1 million. Amounts in
excess of $1 million were deferred as of September 30,
1999 as Gas Cost Credits and were refunded to customers
during the first half of fiscal 2000. (See Note 2. Impact
of Deregulation.)

Corporate Reorganization

AGL Resources undertook an operational excellence
project during fiscal 2000. The goal was to improve
productivity and profitability through internal operational
activity reassessment supported with external benchmarks.
The project concluded prior to September 30, 2000, and
resulted in AGL Resources reorganizing various functions
and identifying specific positions to be eliminated. A one-
time pre-tax charge of $6.3 million was recorded in the
fourth quarter in fiscal 2000.

Risk Management

AGLC’s Gas Supply Plan included limited use of gas 
put and/or call agreements as part of its gas supply
trading activities. During the first quarter of fiscal
1999, the Company also participated in fixed price
option agreements. As part of the joint stipulation
agreement, AGLC discontinued such agreements. The
costs associated with the fiscal 1999 fixed price option
agreements reduced overall gas costs and were recovered
from AGLC’s customers in conjunction with the joint
stipulation agreement.

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” SFAS 133 as amended by SFAS 138,
“Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and
Certain Hedging Activities” establishes accounting and
reporting standards for derivative instruments, including
certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts,
and for hedging activities. AGL Resources adopted
SFAS 133 on October 1, 2000. The impact of the adoption
of SFAS 133 on AGL Resources’ consolidated financial
statements at October 1, 2000 was immaterial, but could
increase the volatility of earnings in future periods.

AGL Resources enters into various gas put and/or
call agreements as part of its trading activities, which
primarily focus on: (1) managing AGL Resources’ overall
gas cost, (2) generating premium income on options, and
(3) ensuring adequate gas reserves. The contract terms
normally last one calendar month and are designed to
protect AGL Resources against the adverse effects that
daily gas index fluctuations may have on gas purchases.
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Income Taxes

The reporting of AGL Resources’ assets and liabilities for
financial accounting purposes differs from the reporting
for income tax purposes. The tax effects of the differences
in those items are reported as deferred income tax assets
or liabilities in AGL Resources’ Consolidated Balance
Sheets. The utility’s investment tax credits have been
deferred and are being amortized as credits to income over
the estimated lives of the related properties in accordance
with regulatory treatment. 

Evaluation of Assets for Impairment

SFAS 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of”
requires AGL Resources to review long-lived assets and
certain intangibles for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
an asset may not be recoverable. Any impairment losses
are reported in the period in which the recognition
criteria are first applied based on the fair value of the
asset. In accordance with SFAS 121, AGL Resources has
evaluated its long-lived assets for financial impairment.
As of September 30, 2000, AGL Resources believes that
no asset impairments exist.

Utility Plant and Depreciation

Utility plant is the term utilized to describe the utility’s
business property and equipment which is in use, being
held for future use, and under construction. Utility
plant is reported at its original cost, which includes:

• Material and labor; 
• Contractor costs; 
• Construction overhead costs (where applicable); and
• An allowance for funds used during construction

(described later in this note). 

Retired or otherwise disposed of utility plant is charged
to accumulated depreciation. 

Depreciation Expense – The depreciation for the utility
is computed by applying composite, straight-line rates
(approved by the GPSC and TRA) to the investment of
depreciable utility property. The composite straight-line

depreciation rate was approximately 3.1%, 3.1%, 
and 3.0% for depreciable utility property excluding
transportation equipment during fiscal 2000, 1999, 
and 1998, respectively. Transportation equipment is
depreciated on a straight-line basis over a period of five
to ten years. 

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction
(“AFUDC”) – Construction projects in Georgia and
Tennessee are financed with borrowed funds and
equity funds. The GPSC and the TRA allow AGLC and
Chattanooga, respectively, to record the cost of those
funds as part of the cost of construction projects on
AGL Resources’ Consolidated Balance Sheets and as
AFUDC in the Statements of Consolidated Income. The
Georgia portion of AFUDC is calculated based upon a
rate authorized by the GPSC. Beginning July 1, 1998, the
GPSC authorized a rate of 9.11% for AFUDC. For the
nine months ended June 30, 1998, the GPSC authorized
AFUDC rate was 9.32%. The Chattanooga portion of
AFUDC is calculated based upon a rate authorized by the
TRA. For fiscal 1998, 1999 and 2000, the TRA authorized
a rate of 9.08% for AFUDC.

Non-Utility Plant and Depreciation

Non-utility plant is the term utilized to describe AGL
Resources’ non-utility business property that is in use
and under construction. AGL Resources reports its non-
utility plant at cost. A gain or loss is recorded for retired
or otherwise disposed of non-utility plant. Non-utility
depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over a
period of one to 35 years.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the reporting of cash flows, cash equivalents are
defined as highly liquid investments that mature in
three months or less. Non-cash investing and financing
transactions include the following: 

• The issuance of common stock for ResourcesDirect, a
stock purchase and dividend reinvestment plan; the
Retirement Savings Plus Plan (“RSP Plan”); the Long-
Term Stock Incentive Plan (“LTSIP”); the Long-Term
Incentive Plan (“LTIP”); the Nonqualified Savings Plan
(“NSP”); Dividend Reinvestment Plan (“DRIP”); and
the Non-Employee Directors Equity Compensation Plan
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(“Directors Plan”) of $9.4 million in fiscal 2000, $11.3
million in fiscal 1999, and $12.0 million in fiscal 1998; 

• The impairment of certain long-lived assets in fiscal
1998 of $13.9 million; and

• Capital leases of $1.9 million in fiscal 2000.

Earnings per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share is computed by dividing
income available to common stockholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding for the
period. Diluted earnings per common share reflects the
potential dilution that could occur when common share
equivalents are added to common shares outstanding.
Diluted earnings per common share is calculated quarterly
and the number of incremental shares to be included 
at year end is the weighted average of each quarterly
calculation. AGL Resources’ common share equivalents
are derived from performance units whose future issuance
is contingent upon the satisfaction of certain performance
criteria and stock options whose exercise prices were
less than the average market price of the common shares
for the respective periods. Performance units totaling
7,904 qualified as common stock equivalents during fiscal
2000. An average of 38,761, 92,045, and 91,873 incremental
shares qualified as common stock equivalents for fiscal
2000, 1999, and 1998, respectively, because the exercise
prices of those options were less than the average market
price of the common shares for the respective periods.

Concentration of Credit Risk

AGLC has concentration of credit risk related to the
provision of services to certificated marketers. At
September 30, 1998, AGLC billed approximately 1.4
million end-use customers in Georgia for its services. 
In contrast, at September 30, 2000, AGLC billed 12
certificated and active marketers in Georgia for services,
who, in turn, billed end-use customers. 

Several factors are designed to mitigate the risks to
AGL Resources of the increased concentration of credit
that has resulted from deregulation. First, in order to
obtain a certificate from the GPSC, a certificated marketer
must demonstrate to the GPSC, among other things, that
it possesses satisfactory financial and technical capability
to render the certificated service. Second, AGLC has
instituted certain practices and imposed certain
requirements designed to reduce credit risk. These include:

• Pursuant to AGLC’s tariff, each certificated marketer
is required to maintain security for its obligations to
AGLC in an amount equal to at least two times the
marketer’s estimated maximum monthly bill and in
the form of a cash deposit, letter of credit, surety bond
or guaranty from a creditworthy guarantor; and 

• Intrastate delivery service is billed in advance
rather than in arrears. 

For fiscal 2000, the three largest certificated marketers
based on customer count, one of which was SouthStar,
accounted for approximately 69% of AGL Resources’
operating revenues. From October 1, 1999 through
September 30, 2000, only gas receivables attributable 
to Chattanooga were due from end-use customers. 

AGLC also faces potential credit risk in connection
with assignments to certificated marketers of interstate
pipeline transportation and storage capacity. Although
AGLC has assigned this capacity to the certificated
marketers, in the event that the certificated marketers
fail to pay the interstate pipelines for the capacity, the
interstate pipelines would in all likelihood seek repayment
from AGLC. This risk is mitigated somewhat by the fact
that the interstate pipelines require the certificated
marketers to maintain security for their obligations to
the interstate pipelines arising out of the assigned capacity. 

On October 26, 1999, Peachtree Natural Gas, LLC
(“Peachtree”), the then fifth largest certificated marketer
in Georgia based on customer count, filed for protection
under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code.
As of the date of Peachtree’s bankruptcy filing, Peachtree
owed AGLC approximately $14 million for pre-petition
delivery service and other services and charges. This
amount represented approximately 42% of AGL Resources’
total gas receivables at September 30, 2000. AGLC holds
$11 million of surety bonds as security for Peachtree’s
obligations. The amount owed to AGLC does not include
amounts owed by Peachtree to interstate pipelines for
assigned capacity. Based upon proofs of claim filed by
interstate pipelines in Peachtree’s bankruptcy proceeding,
as of the date of Peachtree’s filing, Peachtree owed
interstate pipelines approximately $2.5 million for
assigned capacity. In December 1999, Shell Energy
Services Company, L.L.C. began serving the firm
customers formerly served by Peachtree. AGLC has been
paid in full for all post-petition delivery and other services
provided by AGLC to Peachtree. Peachtree has filed a
declaratory judgment action against AGLC to determine
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who has right, title and interest in and to approximately
$6.2 million, constituting the proceeds of the sale of
certain natural gas inventory.

During fiscal 2000, two other marketers filed for
protection under Chapter 11 of the United States
Bankruptcy Code.

In management’s opinion, these three marketer
bankruptcies will not have a material adverse effect on
AGL Resources’ financial condition or results of operations.

Use of Accounting Estimates

Estimates and assumptions are made when preparing
financial statements under the accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
estimates and assumptions affect various matters: 

• Reported amounts of assets and liabilities in AGL
Resources’ Consolidated Balance Sheets at the dates 
of the financial statements;

• Disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
dates of the financial statements; and

• Reported amounts of revenues and expenses in AGL
Resources’ Statements of Consolidated Income during
the reporting periods. 

Those estimates involve judgments with respect to,
among other things, future economic factors that are
difficult to predict and are beyond management’s control.
Consequently, actual amounts could differ from estimates. 

Inventory

In Georgia’s competitive environment, certificated
marketers, including AGLC’s marketing affiliate, SouthStar,
began selling natural gas to firm end-use customers at
market-based prices in November 1998. Part of the
unbundling process that provides for this competitive
environment is the assignment to certificated marketers
certain pipeline services that AGLC has under contract.
AGLC has assigned the majority of its pipeline storage
services that it has under contract to the certificated
marketers along with a corresponding amount of inventory.

AGLC changed its inventory costing method for its gas
inventories from first-in, first-out to weighted average
effective October 1, 1998. In management’s opinion, the
weighted average inventory costing method provides for

a better matching of costs and revenue from the sale of
gas. Because AGLC recovered all of its gas costs through
a PGA mechanism until October 6, 1998, there is no
cumulative effect resulting from the change in the
inventory costing method. Gas inventories are sold to
certificated marketers at the weighted average cost.

Chattanooga’s gas inventories are stated at cost using
the last-in, first-out method. Materials and supplies
inventories are stated at lower of average cost or market. 

Chattanooga will change its inventory costing method
for its gas inventories from last-in, first-out to weighted
average cost effective October 1, 2000. In management’s
opinion, the weighted average inventory costing method
provides for a better matching of costs and revenue
from the sale of gas and is more consistent with AGLC.
Because Chattanooga recovers all of its gas costs through
a PGA mechanism, there will not be a cumulative effect
resulting from the change in the inventory costing method.

Other

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for
comparative purposes. Those reclassifications did not
affect consolidated net income for the years presented. 

2 IMPACT OF DEREGULATION

Pursuant to Georgia’s 1997 Natural Gas Competition and
Deregulation Act (“Deregulation Act”), AGLC’s retail rates
were restructured to allow its customers to migrate to one
of several marketers who were approved and certificated
by the GPSC (“certificated marketer”). The rate structure
assumed that AGLC’s costs associated with providing
customer service decreased each time a customer switched
to a certificated marketer for gas sales service at the time
the switch was made. However, AGLC’s experience has
been that a significant portion of the costs associated
with customer service activities, including billing, bill
inquiry, payment processing and collection services,
cannot be eliminated immediately after a customer switch
is made, as prescribed by the regulated rate structure.
Instead, a period of up to several months existed during
which AGLC continued to incur these expenses.

In January 1999, the GPSC accelerated the pace of
deregulation. Specifically, the GPSC ordered that all
existing AGLC customers that had not chosen a gas
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provider by August 11, 1999, would be randomly
assigned to a certificated marketer. This accelerated
pace of deregulation exacerbated the disparity between
the speed at which AGLC was assumed for regulated
purposes to be reducing costs and the speed at which
AGLC was actually able to reduce costs resulting in a
negative effect on AGLC’s earnings during fiscal 1999.
Specifically, while transition revenues were reduced by
$15.8 million for fiscal 1999, customer service expenses
were actually increased to handle a 26% increase in call
center activity. During fiscal 2000, this situation stabilized
itself, and AGLC was able to reduce customer service
expenses to a level that reflected the deregulation changes.

On October 19, 1999, the GPSC approved an order
allowing AGLC to defer certain transition to competition
costs for fiscal year 2000 which AGLC considered to 
be “stranded” as a result of deregulation (”Order”). In
accordance with the Order, AGLC deferred transition 
to competition expenses related to severance, customer
service and property. Such deferred expenses are recorded
as regulatory assets under deferred debits and other
assets on AGLC’s balance sheet and are being amortized
over a five-year period beginning October 1, 1999. In
order to be deferred, the cost must also be one that:

• AGLC is still incurring but, as a result of deregulation,
is no longer receiving revenue from the rate or rates
which were set based on that cost;

• Is prudently incurred; and
• Cannot be mitigated.

During fiscal 2000, AGLC deferred approximately $10
million of transition to competition costs, and a
corresponding accumulated deferred income tax liability
of $1.6 million. Of the total transition to competition
costs, AGLC amortized $2 million in fiscal 2000, leaving
a net balance of $6.4 million at September 30, 2000. 

During fiscal 1999, AGLC entered into a joint stipulation
with the GPSC to provide gas sales service to customers
until such time that they had either chosen or been
assigned a marketer to be their gas provider. The joint
stipulation agreement provided for a true-up of any profit
or loss, outside of a maximum range of $3.3 million in
losses to $1.0 million in profit. During fiscal 1999, AGLC
recognized $1.0 million in profit from the sale of gas.
During fiscal 2000, pursuant to the joint stipulation

agreement, AGLC remitted approximately $34 million in
over-collected purchase gas costs to the GPSC. Such costs
were included in Gas Cost Credits as of September 30,
1999. During the second quarter of fiscal 2000, the GPSC
instituted a mechanism pursuant to which certificated
marketers were required to provide customers with a
credit on their bill.

3 INCOME TAXES

AGL Resources has two categories of income taxes in its
Statements of Consolidated Income: current and deferred.
AGL Resources’ current income tax expense consists of
federal and state income tax less applicable tax credits.
AGL Resources’ deferred income tax expense generally
is equal to the changes in the deferred income tax
liability and regulatory tax liability during the year. 

Investment Tax Credits 

AGL Resources has deferred investment tax credits
associated with its utility as a regulatory liability in its
Consolidated Balance Sheets. (See Note 4. Regulatory
Assets and Liabilities.) Those investment tax credits are
being amortized as credits to income in accordance with
regulatory treatment over the estimated life of the related
properties. AGL Resources reduces income tax expense
in its Statements of Consolidated Income for the investment
tax credits and other tax credits associated with its
non-utility subsidiaries. 

Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Assets and Liabilities 

AGL Resources reports some of its assets and liabilities
differently for financial accounting purposes than it does
for income tax purposes. The tax effects of the differences
in those items are reported as deferred income tax assets
or liabilities in AGL Resources’ Consolidated Balance
Sheets. The assets and liabilities are measured utilizing
income tax rates that are currently in effect. Because of
the regulated nature of the utility’s business, a regulatory
tax liability has been recorded in accordance with 
SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” The regulatory
tax liability is being amortized over approximately 30
years. (See Note 4. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities.) 
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Components of income tax expense shown in the
Statements of Consolidated Income for the years ended
September 30 are as follows:

(In Millions) 2000 1999 1998

Included in expenses: 
Current income taxes 

Federal $ 1.2 $27.0 $25.3
State 0.2 4.4 3.6

Deferred income taxes
Federal 31.3 7.3 9.7
State 5.8 1.7 1.6 

Amortization of investment 
tax credits (1.3) (1.3) (1.4)

Total $37.2 $39.1 $38.8 

Reconciliation between the statutory federal income
tax rate and the effective rate for the years ended
September 30 is as follows:

2000

% of Pre-tax 
(Dollars in Millions) Amount Income

Computed tax expense $37.9 35.0%
State income tax, net of federal 

income tax benefit 4.2 3.8
Amortization of investment tax credits (1.3) (1.2)
Nontaxable gain (2.6) (2.4)
Other – net (1.0) (0.8)
Total income tax expense $37.2 34.4%

1999

% of Pre-tax 
(Dollars in Millions) Amount Income

Computed tax expense $39.7 35.0%
State income tax, net of federal 

income tax benefit 3.8 3.3
Amortization of investment tax credits (1.3) (1.1)
Adjustment of prior year’s income taxes (2.2) (1.9)
Other – net (0.9) (0.8)
Total income tax expense $39.1 34.5%

1998

% of Pre-tax 
(Dollars in Millions) Amount Income

Computed tax expense $41.8 35.0%
State income tax, net of federal 

income tax benefit 3.5 2.9
Amortization of investment tax credits (1.4) (1.2) 
Adjustment of prior year’s income taxes (2.3) (1.9)
Other – net (2.8) (2.3)
Total income tax expense $38.8 32.5%

Components that give rise to the net accumulated
deferred income tax liability, as of September 30, are 
as follows:

(In Millions) 2000 1999

Accumulated deferred 
income tax liabilities: 

Property – accelerated depreciation 
and other property-related items $243.6 $236.2

Other 39.2 28.1
Total accumulated deferred 

income tax liabilities 282.8 264.3

Accumulated deferred 
income tax assets: 

Deferred investment tax credits 9.0 9.4
Other 24.2 43.6
Total accumulated deferred 

income tax assets 33.2 53.0
Net accumulated deferred 

income tax liability $249.6 $211.3 
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4 REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The GPSC and the TRA regulate the utility business. AGL
Resources generally uses the same accounting policies and
practices used by non-regulated companies for financial
reporting under generally accepted accounting principles.
However, sometimes the GPSC and the TRA order an
accounting treatment different from that used by non-
regulated companies to determine the rates the utility
charges its customers. When that happens, certain utility
expenses and income must be deferred and reported in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets as regulatory assets and
liabilities. These deferred items are then recognized in the
Statements of Consolidated Income through amortization
when the items are included in the rates charged the
utility’s customers. 

AGL Resources has recorded assets and liabilities in its
Consolidated Balance Sheets in accordance with SFAS 71,
“Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.”
In July 1997, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”)
concluded that once legislation is passed to deregulate a
segment of a utility and that legislation includes sufficient
detail for the enterprise to determine how the transition
plan will affect that segment, SFAS 71 should be
discontinued for that segment of the utility. The EITF
consensus permits assets and liabilities of a deregulated
segment to be retained if they are recoverable through 
a segment that remains regulated. 

Georgia has enacted legislation, the Deregulation Act,
which allows deregulation of natural gas sales and the
separation of some ancillary services of local natural gas
distribution companies. However, the rates local gas
distribution companies charge to transport natural gas
through their intrastate pipe system will continue to 
be regulated by the GPSC. Therefore, the continued
application of SFAS 71 is appropriate for regulatory
assets and liabilities related to AGLC’s delivery services.

AGLC Pipeline Safety

On January 8, 1998, the GPSC issued procedures and
set a schedule for hearings about alleged pipeline safety
violations. On July 21, 1998, the GPSC approved a
settlement between AGLC and the staff of the GPSC
that details a 10-year pipeline replacement program for
approximately 2,300 miles of cast iron and bare steel pipe.
Over that 10-year period, AGLC will recover from end-
use customers, through billings to certificated marketers,
the costs related to the program net of any cost savings
from the program. 

During fiscal 2000, approximately 248 miles of pipe
were replaced pursuant to the program. During that
period, AGLC’s capital expenditures and operation and
maintenance expenses related to the program were
approximately $49.2 million and $8.4 million, respectively.
All such amounts will be recovered through a combination
of SFV rates and a pipeline safety revenue rider. On
October 1, 1999, AGLC began recovering costs of the
program through the pipeline safety revenue rider. The
amount recovered during fiscal 2000 was approximately
$2.0 million.

AGL Resources’ regulatory assets and liabilities at
September 30 are summarized in the following table: 

(In Millions) 2000 1999

Regulatory Assets:
Unrecovered environmental 

response costs $164.6 $150.2
Unrecovered postretirement 

benefits costs 7.9 8.5
Deferred transition to competition costs 6.4 –
Deferred purchased gas adjustment 5.5 2.8
Other 13.1 13.8
Total $197.5 $175.3

Regulatory Liabilities: 
Unamortized investment tax credit $ 23.2 $ 24.5
Regulatory tax liability 15.5 16.4
Environmental response cost recoveries 

from third parties–customer portion – 7.1
Other 1.4 3.8
Total $ 40.1 $ 51.8
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5 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS AND 
STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

Substantially all of AGL Resources’ employees are eligible
to participate in its employee benefit plans. 

Pension Benefits 

AGL Resources sponsors a defined benefit retirement
plan (“Retirement Plan”) for its employees. A defined
benefit plan specifies the amount of benefits an eligible
plan participant eventually will receive using information
about the participant. AGL Resources generally calculates
the benefits under the Retirement Plan based on age,
years of service, and pay. AGL Resources’ employees do
not contribute to the Retirement Plan. AGL Resources
funds the plan by contributing annually the amount
required by applicable regulations and as recommended
by its actuary. AGL Resources calculates the amount of
funding using an actuarial method called the projected
unit credit cost method. The Retirement Plan’s assets
consist primarily of marketable securities, corporate
obligations, U.S. government obligations, insurance
contracts, mutual funds, and cash equivalents. 

AGL Resources has an excess benefit plan that is
unfunded and provides supplemental benefits to some
officers after retirement. AGL Resources maintains a
voluntary early retirement plan for some AGL Resources
officers that is unfunded and provides supplemental
pension benefits to participants who elected early
retirement. The annual expense and accumulated benefits
of such plans are not significant. 

The following tables present details about AGL
Resources’ pension plans at September 30 (dollars 
in millions):

2000 1999

Change in Benefit Obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 223.0 $ 242.7
Service cost 3.4 5.2
Interest cost 15.9 16.9
Plan amendment (12.8) –
Actuarial gain (6.7) (27.1)
Benefits paid (15.3) (14.7)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 207.5 $ 223.0

Change in Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets at 

beginning of year $ 236.7 $ 229.5
Actual return on plan assets 13.2 17.6
Employer contribution 0.8 4.3
Benefits paid (15.4) (14.7)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 235.3 $ 236.7

Funded Status:
Plan assets greater than benefit

obligation at end of year $   27.8 $   13.7
Unrecognized net asset (1.5) (2.2)
Unrecognized net gain (24.0) (19.4)
Unrecognized prior service cost (benefit) (9.6) 2.6
Accrued pension cost $   (7.3) $    (5.3)

Weighted Average 
Assumptions as of June 30: 2000 1999 1998

Discount rate 8.0% 7.8% 7.0%
Expected return on 

plan assets 8.3% 8.3% 8.3%
Rate of compensation 

increase 3.8% 4.3% 4.3%

Components of Net 
Annual Pension Cost:
Service cost $    3.4 $    5.2 $    4.6
Interest cost 16.0 16.9 16.6
Expected return on 

plan assets (18.2) (16.9) (15.8) 
Net amortization (1.3) – –
Net annual pension cost (0.1) 5.2 5.4
Curtailment loss 2.8 2.3 –
Net annual pension cost 

after curtailments $    2.7 $    7.5 $    5.4
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Effective July 1, 2000, the benefit formula for the
Retirement Plan was amended and changed from a final
average earnings formula to a career average earnings
formula for participants under age 50. The final average
earnings plan will continue 10 years for participants
over age 50, and then will convert to a career average
earnings formula. Due to the above amendment, the
Company’s projected benefit obligation has been reduced.

In fiscal 2000 and 1999, AGL Resources recorded 
a curtailment loss of $2.8 million and $2.3 million,
respectively, related to the early retirement of certain
officers included in the supplemental retirement plan.

Employee Savings Plan Benefits

AGL Resources also sponsors the RSP Plan, a defined
contribution benefit plan. In a defined contribution benefit
plan, the benefits a participant ultimately receives come
from regular contributions to a participant account. Under
the RSP Plan, AGL Resources made matching contributions
to participant accounts in the following amounts: 

•$3.0 million in fiscal 2000;
•$3.5 million in fiscal 1999; and 
•$3.5 million in fiscal 1998. 

AGL Resources’ NSP, an unfunded, nonqualified plan
similar to the RSP Plan, established on July 1, 1995,
provides an opportunity for eligible employees to
contribute additional amounts for retirement savings once
they have reached the maximum contribution amount in
the RSP Plan. AGL Resources’ contributions to the NSP
during fiscal 2000, 1999, and 1998 were not significant. 

Effective July 1, 2000, the RSP Plan was amended for
participants under age 50 to increase company matching
contributions to 65 cents for each dollar an employee
contributes up to 8% of total compensation (base salary,
overtime, and bonuses). Formerly, AGL Resources
matched contributions at the rate of 65 cents for each
dollar an employee contributed up to 6% of base salary
plus overtime. Also, the vesting period under the RSP
Plan was reduced from five years to three years.

Employee Stock Ownership Benefits

In January 1988, AGL Resources purchased 2.0 million
shares of common stock at $11.75 per share with the
proceeds of a loan secured by the common stock. AGL
Resources did not guarantee the repayment of the loan.
The loan was repaid from regular cash dividends on
AGL Resources common stock paid to the Leveraged
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“LESOP”) and from
contributions to the LESOP, as approved by the Board
of Directors. Repayment of the loan was completed on
December 31, 1997. Contributions to the LESOP were
$0.2 million for fiscal 1998. 

AGL Resources terminated its LESOP and distributed
the value of participants’ LESOP account balances as of
June 15, 1999. At the election of the participants, the value
of each account was distributed in one of three forms:

• Direct rollover into the RSP Plan or into another
tax-qualified retirement plan;

• Lump sum payment in the form of a certificate for
shares of AGL Resources common stock; or

• Lump sum cash payment based on the market value of
AGL Resources common stock at the close of business
on June 14, 1999, which was $18.50 per share.

During fiscal 1999, 868,688 LESOP shares were
repurchased in cash by AGL Resources from the LESOP
trustee in a non-brokered transaction at a purchase price
of $18.50 per share, and were initially placed by AGL
Resources in treasury. An additional 236,625 shares were
transferred to participants’ accounts under the RSP Plan
from the respective participants’ accounts in the LESOP.
AGL Resources re-issues these treasury shares for the LTIP,
LTSIP, DRIP, Directors Plan, and for direct stock purchases. 

Postretirement Benefits 

AGL Resources sponsors defined benefit postretirement
health care and life insurance plans, which cover nearly
all employees if they reach retirement age while working
for AGL Resources. The benefits under these plans are
generally calculated based on age and years of service. 

Some retirees contribute a portion of health care plan
costs. Retirees do not contribute toward the cost of the
life insurance plan. 
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Effective October 1, 1993, AGL Resources adopted
SFAS 106, “Employer’s Accounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other Than Pensions,” which requires accrual
of postretirement benefits other than pensions during
the years an employee provides service. In 1993, the
GPSC approved a five-year phase-in that defers a portion
of other postretirement benefits expense for future
recovery. A regulatory asset has been recorded for that
amount. In 1993, the TRA approved the recovery of
other postretirement benefits expense that is funded
through an external trust. 

The following tables present details about AGL
Resources’ postretirement benefits at September 30
(dollars in millions):

Change in Benefit Obligation: 2000 1999

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 102.7 $ 104.8
Service cost 0.8 0.9
Interest cost 7.8 7.2
Actuarial loss (gain) 8.6 (3.7)
Benefits paid (6.7) (6.5)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 113.2 $ 102.7

Change in Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets at 

beginning of year $   28.7 $   23.6
Actual return on plan assets 1.6 2.9
Employer contribution 8.2 8.8
Benefits paid (6.7) (6.5)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $   31.8 $   28.8

Funded Status:
Accumulated benefit obligation

in excess of plan assets $ (81.4) $ (73.9)
Unrecognized gain (3.5) (15.7)
Unrecognized transition amount 53.1 57.2
Accrued benefit cost $ (31.8) $ (32.4)

Weighted Average 
Assumptions as of June 30: 2000 1999 1998

Discount rate 8.0% 7.8% 7.0%
Expected return on 

plan assets 8.3% 8.3% 8.3%

For purposes of measuring the accumulated post-
retirement benefit obligation, the assumed health care
inflation rate for pre-Medicare and post-Medicare
eligibility is 9.0% in 2000, decreasing 0.5% per year 
to 6.0% in the year 2006, decreasing 0.3% to 5.7% in
2007, and decreasing 0.5% to 5.2% in 2008.

Components of Net 
Periodic Benefit Cost: 2000 1999 1998

Service cost $   0.8 $   1.0 $   0.9
Interest cost 7.7 7.2 7.6
Expected return on 

plan assets (2.1) (1.7) (1.5)
Amortization of gain (0.5) (0.5) (0.5)
Amortization of 

transition amount 4.1 4.1 4.1
Amortization of 

regulatory asset 0.6 0.8 0.7
Net periodic 

postretirement 
benefit cost $ 10.6 $ 10.9 $ 11.3

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a
significant effect on the amounts reported for the
health care plans. A one-percentage-point change in
assumed health care cost trend rates would have the
following effects (in millions):

1-Percentage- 1-Percentage-
Point Increase Point Decrease

Effect on total of service and 
interest cost components $0.4 $(0.4)

Effect on postretirement 
benefit obligation $5.6 $(4.9)
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Stock-Based Compensation Plans 

AGL Resources’ LTIP, which became effective January 1,
1999, provides for grants of performance units, restricted
stock and incentive and nonqualified stock options to
key employees. The LTIP currently authorizes the issuance
of up to 2.8 million shares of AGL Resources’ common
stock. AGL Resources also maintains a predecessor plan,
the LTSIP, which provides for grants of restricted stock,
incentive and nonqualified stock options, and stock
appreciation rights to key employees. The LTSIP currently
authorizes issuance of up to 3.2 million shares of AGL
Resources’ common stock. In addition, AGL Resources
sponsors the Directors Plan in which all non-employee
directors participate. The Directors Plan provides for the
issuance of restricted stock and nonqualified stock options.
The Directors Plan currently authorizes the issuance of up
to 200,000 shares of AGL Resources’ common stock. Plan
participants realize value from option grants, only to the
extent that the fair market value of AGL Resources common
stock on the date of exercise of the option exceeds the fair
market value of the common stock on the date of grant.

Incentive and Nonqualified Stock Options 

Incentive and nonqualified stock options are granted at
the fair market value on the date of grant. The vesting
of incentive options is subject to a statutory limitation

of $100,000 per year under Section 422A of the Internal
Revenue Code. Otherwise, nonqualified options generally
become fully exercisable not earlier than six months
after the date of grant and generally expire 10 years
after that date. 

A summary of activity for key employees and non-
employee directors related to grants of incentive and
nonqualified stock options follows: 

Weighted 
Number of Average 

Options Exercise Price

Outstanding – Sept. 30, 1997 1,404,475 $18.69
Granted 818,552 19.90
Exercised (68,684) 16.95
Forfeited (54,495) 20.11
Outstanding – Sept. 30, 1998 2,099,848 19.19

Granted 671,333 21.11
Exercised (91,945) 17.12
Forfeited (159,558) 20.51
Outstanding – Sept. 30, 1999 2,519,678 19.69

Granted 1,684,124 18.28
Exercised (25,674) 17.03
Forfeited (848,972) 19.49
Outstanding – Sept. 30, 2000 3,329,156 $19.05

Information about outstanding and exercisable options, as of September 30, 2000, follows: 

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable 

Weighted Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted

Range of Contractual Life Average Average
Exercise Prices Number of Options (in years) Exercise Price Number of Options Exercise Price

$13.75 to $17.49 307,675 4.7 $16.35 242,930 $16.13
$17.50 to $19.99 1,793,668 7.5 18.48 878,690 18.76
$20.00 to $23.19 1,227,813 6.7 20.55 1,129,735 20.53
$13.75 to $23.19 3,329,156 6.9 $19.05 2,251,355 $19.36
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A summary of outstanding options that are fully
exercisable follows: 

Weighted 
Number of Average 

Options Exercise Price

Exercisable – September 30, 1998 1,961,864 $19.15
Exercisable – September 30, 1999 2,063,824 $19.39
Exercisable – September 30, 2000 2,251,355 $19.36

AGL Resources applies Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and related interpretations in accounting for
AGL Resources’ LTIP stock option plans. Accordingly,
no compensation expense has been recognized in
connection with AGL Resources’ LTIP, LTSIP, and
Directors Plan option grants. If AGL Resources had
determined compensation expense for the issuance of
options based on the fair value method described in
SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,”
net income and earnings per share would have been
reduced to the pro forma amounts presented below: 

For the years ended September 30, 2000 1999 1998

Net income-as reported (millions) $71.1 $74.4 $80.6
Net income-pro forma (millions) $67.3 $72.8 $79.4
Basic earnings per share – 

as reported $ 1.29 $ 1.30 $ 1.41
Basic earnings per share – 

pro forma $ 1.22 $ 1.27 $ 1.39
Diluted earnings per share – 

as reported $ 1.29 $ 1.29 $ 1.41
Diluted earnings per share – 

pro forma $ 1.22 $ 1.27 $ 1.39

In accordance with the fair value method of determining
compensation expense, the weighted average grant date
fair value per share of options granted was as follows: 

• $2.35 in fiscal 2000; 
• $2.68 in fiscal 1999; and 
• $2.55 in fiscal 1998. 

AGL Resources used the Black-Scholes pricing model
to estimate the fair value of each option granted with the
following weighted average assumptions for the years
ended September 30: 

2000 1999 1998

Expected life (years) 7 7 7 
Interest rate 6.2% 4.9% 5.5%
Volatility 18.3% 18.3% 17.8%
Dividend yield 6.0% 5.1% 5.5%

Performance Units

A performance unit is a right of a key employee to
receive one share of common stock in the future subject
to certain performance criteria. If performance criteria
are met, vesting of up to 21,076 performance units will
occur at the end of the three-year measurement period
on September 30, 2002.

Stock Awards

Stock awards generally are subject to some vesting
restrictions. AGL Resources recognizes compensation
expense for those stock awards over the related vesting
periods. AGL Resources awarded shares of stock, net of
forfeitures, to key employees in the following amounts: 

• 10,000 shares in fiscal 2000; 
• 11,115 shares in fiscal 1999; and 
• 25,891 shares in fiscal 1998. 

At the date of the award, the weighted average fair
value of the shares, net of forfeitures, was as follows: 

• $17.38 in fiscal 2000; 
• $20.06 in fiscal 1999; and 
• $19.76 in fiscal 1998. 

The compensation costs that have been charged against
income for performance units, restricted stock and other
stock-based awards, were immaterial in fiscal 2000, 1999,
and 1998.
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Directors Plan

Under the Directors Plan, each non-employee director
receives an annual grant of: 

• a stock award equal in fair market value to
$16,000; and

• a nonqualified stock option to purchase the same
number of shares of common stock as the annual
stock award.

The stock award is payable in shares of AGL Resources’
common stock or, at the election of a director, is deferred
and is invested in common stock equivalents.

6 COMMON STOCK

Shareholder Rights Plan

On March 6, 1996, AGL Resources’ Board of Directors
adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan. The plan contains
provisions to protect AGL Resources’ shareholders in the
event of unsolicited offers to acquire AGL Resources or
other takeover bids and practices that could impair the
ability of the Board of Directors to represent shareholders’
interests fully. As required by the Shareholder Rights
Plan, the Board of Directors declared a dividend of one
preferred share purchase right (a “Right”) for each outstanding
share of AGL Resources’ common stock, with distribution
made to shareholders of record on March 22, 1996. 

The Rights, which will expire March 6, 2006, are
represented by and traded with AGL Resources common
stock. The Rights are not currently exercisable and do
not become exercisable unless a triggering event occurs.
One of the triggering events is the acquisition of 10%
or more of AGL Resources’ common stock by a person
or group of affiliated or associated persons. Unless
previously redeemed, upon the occurrence of one of the
specified triggering events, each Right will entitle its
holder to purchase one one-hundredth of a share of
Class A Junior Participating Preferred Stock at a purchase
price of $60. Each preferred share will have 100 votes,
voting together with the common stock. Because of the
nature of the preferred shares’ dividend, liquidation
and voting rights, one one-hundredth of a share of
preferred stock is intended to have the value, rights,
and preferences of one share of common stock. As of
September 30, 2000, 1.0 million shares of Class A

Junior Participating Preferred Stock were reserved for
issuance under that plan. 

Share Repurchase Program

On October 5, 1999, the Board of Directors of AGL
Resources authorized a plan to repurchase up to 3.6
million shares (6.3% of total outstanding as of September
30, 1999) of AGL Resources’ common stock over a period
ending no later than September 30, 2001. Open market
purchases of the shares were made from time to time,
subject to availability, and the repurchased shares were
initially placed in treasury. During fiscal 2000, AGL
Resources completed the program by repurchasing 3.6
million shares of common stock for a total of $62.1 million.
Subsequent to June 15, 1999, shares issued under the
AGL Resources’ benefit plans and DRIP have been issued
from shares initially placed in treasury.

Other

AGL Resources issued the following shares of common
stock under ResourcesDirect, the RSP Plan, the LTSIP,
the LTIP, the NSP, and the Directors Plan:

• 584,284 shares of common stock in fiscal 2000;
• 677,411 shares of common stock in fiscal 1999; and
• 739,380 shares of common stock in fiscal 1998.

As of September 30, 2000, 8,763,359 shares of common
stock were reserved for issuance under ResourcesDirect,
the RSP Plan, the LTSIP, the LTIP, the NSP, and the
Directors Plan. 

7 PREFERRED STOCK

Subsidiary Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable 
Preferred Securities (“Capital Securities”) 

In June 1997, AGL Resources established AGL Capital
Trust I (“Trust”), a Delaware business trust, and AGL
Resources owns all the common voting securities. The
Trust issued and sold $75 million principal amount of
8.17% Capital Securities (liquidation amount $1,000 per
Capital Security) to certain initial investors. The Trust used
the proceeds to purchase 8.17% Junior Subordinated
Deferrable Interest Debentures, which are due June 1,
2037, from AGL Resources. 
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The Capital Securities are subject to mandatory
redemption at the time of the repayment of the Junior
Subordinated Debentures on June 1, 2037, or the optional
prepayment by AGL Resources after May 31, 2007. AGL
Resources fully and unconditionally guarantees all the
Trust’s obligations for the Capital Securities. 

Other Preferred Securities 

As of September 30, 2000, AGL Resources had 10.0 million
shares of authorized, and unissued, Class A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock, no par value; and 10.0
million shares of authorized, and unissued, preferred
stock, no par value. As of September 30, 2000, AGLC
had 10.0 million shares of authorized, and unissued,
preferred stock, no par value. 

8 LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt matures more than one year from the date
of issuance. AGL Resources’ long-term debt consists of
medium-term notes Series A, Series B, and Series C which
were issued under an Indenture dated December 1, 1989.
The notes are unsecured and rank on parity with all other
unsecured indebtedness. Net proceeds from the issuance of
medium-term notes were used to fund capital expenditures,
repay short-term debt, and for other corporate purposes.
The annual maturities of long-term debt for the five-year
period ending September 30, 2005, are as follows: 

• $20.0 million in fiscal 2001;
• $45.0 million in fiscal 2002;
• $48.0 million in fiscal 2003;
• $30.0 million in fiscal 2004; and
• $33.5 million in fiscal 2005.

The outstanding long-term debt as of September 30, net
of current maturities, is as follows: 

(In Millions) 2000 1999

Medium-term notes 
Series A(1) $ 30.0 $ 50.0 
Series B(2) 260.0 260.0 
Series C(3) 300.0 300.0
Total $590.0 $610.0 

(1) Interest rate of 9.10% with a maturity date of fiscal 2021. (2) Interest
rates from 7.35% to 8.70% with maturity dates from fiscal 2002 to
fiscal 2023. (3) Interest rates from 5.90% to 7.30% with maturity
dates from fiscal 2004 to fiscal 2027. 

9 SHORT-TERM DEBT

Short-term debt matures within one year from the date
of issuance. Lines of credit with various banks provide
for direct borrowings and are subject to annual renewal.
The current lines of credit vary throughout the year from
$175 million to $260 million. Certain of the lines are 
on a commitment-fee basis. As of September 30, 2000,
$63.8 million was available on lines of credit. Weighted
average interest rates on short-term debt outstanding
were 7.0%, 5.6%, and 5.8% as of September 30, 2000,
1999, and 1998, respectively. This short-term debt was
refinanced with commercial paper in October 2000.

In connection with the purchase of VNG, AGL Resources
established a $900 million commercial paper program
through AGL Capital Corporation. AGL Resources’
commercial paper consists of short-term unsecured
promissory notes with maturities ranging from overnight
to 270 days. AGL Resources’ commercial paper program
is fully supported by bank back-up credit lines. On
October 6, 2000, AGL Resources issued $660 million in
commercial paper, the proceeds of which were used to
finance the VNG acquisition and to refinance existing
short-term debt.

On October 6, 2000, AGL Resources Inc. and AGL
Capital Corporation entered into a Credit Agreement with
several lenders (“Lenders”) for whom SunTrust Bank
(“SunTrust”) is acting as Administrative Agent. Pursuant
to the Credit Agreement, the Lenders agree to make
available to AGL Capital Corporation, upon demand, up
to $900 million (the “Revolving Commitment”). This
Credit Agreement has been entered into in support 
of AGL Resources’ commercial paper program. The
Revolving Commitment may be borrowed, repaid and
reborrowed in the form of Eurodollar loans, adjustable
rate loans (based on SunTrust’s Prime Rate, or based on
the Federal Funds Effective Rate plus 1%), letters of
credit (up to $50 million), or, in certain circumstances,
fixed rate loans for a defined period agreed upon by
AGL Capital Corporation and the Lenders. The Revolving
Commitment expires on October 5, 2001 (the “Revolving
Termination Date”). Loans outstanding on the Revolving
Termination Date, up to a maximum aggregate principal
amount of $200 million, may be converted into Term
Loans. All Term Loans will mature in one installment on
the date that is one year from the Revolving Termination
Date. Currently, there are no outstanding loans under
the Credit Agreement.
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10 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Agreements for Firm Pipeline and Storage Capacity

In connection with its utility business, AGL Resources has
agreements for firm pipeline and storage capacity that
expire at various dates through 2014. The aggregate
amounts of required payments for AGLC under such
agreements total approximately $1.1 billion, with annual
payments of $184 million in fiscal 2001, $117 million in
fiscal 2002, $77 million in fiscal 2003, $48 million in fiscal
2004, and $47 million in fiscal 2005. Total payments of
fixed charges under all agreements were $194 million in
fiscal 2000, $203 million in fiscal 1999, and $220 million
in fiscal 1998.

As a result of the Deregulation Act, AGLC’s rights 
to capacity under the purchase agreements have been
temporarily assigned to certificated marketers as they
acquire firm customers. These certificated marketers are
responsible for payment of the fixed charges associated
with the assignments. In case of certificated marketer
default, AGLC remains responsible for approximately
70% of such payments as long as it is the holder of these
contracts. AGLC makes payments for the remaining 30%
and then bills to and collects from certificated marketers
all such payments made. 

The aggregate amount of required payments for
Chattanooga under its firm pipeline and storage capacity
agreements totals approximately $17 million, with annual
payments of $5 million in fiscal 2001, $4 million in fiscal
2002 and 2003, $1 million in fiscal 2004 and 2005. Total
payments of fixed charges under all agreements were
$13 million in fiscal 2000, 1999, and 1998. Subsequent
to September 30, 2000, Chattanooga extended certain of
these agreements, which otherwise would have expired
in November 2000.

Chattanooga Gas Supply Contracts

AGLE purchases natural gas for Chattanooga. As of
September 30, 2000, AGLE held four gas supply contracts
at market rates representing 34,900 decatherms per day
of longer term gas supply through fiscal 2001. The
remainder of Chattanooga’s gas supply is met by AGLE
purchasing gas on the spot market. 

FERC Order 637: Transition Costs Settlement Agreements

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”)
issued Order No. 637 on February 9, 2000, which revises
the FERC’s rules governing the operations of the utility’s
interstate pipeline suppliers. Among other things, the FERC:

• On an experimental basis through September 30, 2002,
permitted holders of firm pipeline capacity to release
the capacity to other shippers at a price greater than
the pipeline’s maximum rate for the same capacity;

• Authorized pipelines to propose different rates for
services rendered during periods of peak usage and
to propose rates that would differ based on the length
of the customer’s contract; and

• Declined, for the present time, to permit pipelines and
their customers to establish individually negotiated
terms and conditions of service that depart from
generally applicable pipeline tariff rules.

On May 19, 2000, the FERC issued order No. 637-A,
granting and denying rehearing in part of order No. 637
and making clarifying adjustments to its final rule.
Among other things, the FERC clarified that all capacity
release transactions of more than one month must be
subject to posting and bidding as long as waiver of the
maximum rate ceiling is in effect, thereby eliminating
the exemption from posting and bidding that previously
applied to certain transactions, including rollovers of
monthly prearranged capacity release transactions set
at the maximum tariff rate. AGL Resources cannot
predict how these revisions may potentially affect its
utility operations.

The FERC has required the utility, as well as other
interstate pipeline customers, to pay transition costs
associated with the separation of the interstate suppliers’
transportation and gas supply services. Based on its
interstate pipeline suppliers’ filings with the FERC, the
utility has determined that the total portion of its transition
costs from all of its pipeline suppliers was $108.1 million.
As of September 30, 2000, all of those costs had been
incurred and were being recovered from the utility’s
customers under rates charged for the distribution of gas.

During fiscal 2000, the utility paid $89.9 million in
transition costs to Southern pursuant to a restructuring
settlement that resolves all transition cost issues for
Southern.

On March 10, 2000, Southern filed a settlement to
resolve all issues arising out of its September 1, 1999
general rate case filing. Among other matters, the
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settlement provides for the termination of Southern’s
interstate pipeline affiliate, South Georgia Natural Gas
Company (“South Georgia”), as a separate entity, with
Southern absorbing South Georgia’s facilities and
operations. The settlement rates represent a decrease 
of approximately $6 million per year under the utility’s
existing contracts for firm interstate pipeline capacity.
In return for the rate reduction, firm contract holders
were required to extend their existing contracts by three
years. The utility filed comments requesting that the FERC
approve the settlement and the approval was granted on
May 31, 2000.

AGLC is involved in three Transcontinental Gas Pipe
Line Corporation rate cases, which concern rates in effect
since September 1, 1995, as well as proposed changes to
take effect prospectively. These rate proceedings are at
various stages of litigation before the FERC, and none of
these proceedings are final. At the present time, AGLC
cannot predict the effect of these proceedings on rates or
operations.

Collective Bargaining Agreements

On September 30, 2000, AGL Resources and its subsidiaries
had 1,938 employees. Of that total, approximately 500
employees are covered under collective bargaining
agreements. There are currently four collective bargaining
contracts, with the Teamster contract representing the
largest group of 263 employees. The Teamster agreement
expired in September 2000, and a new agreement, which
is effective through March 2003, was reached on
October 27, 2000. Two additional contracts will expire
in fiscal 2001, which represent about 70 employees.

Rental Expense

Total rental expense for property and equipment was 
as follows: 

• $15.1 million in fiscal 2000; 
• $8.5 million in fiscal 1999; and 
• $7.7 million in fiscal 1998. 

Minimum annual rentals under non-cancelable operating
leases are as follows: 

• Fiscal 2001 – $18.3 million; 
• Fiscal 2002 – $18.2 million; 
• Fiscal 2003 – $15.5 million; 

• Fiscal 2004 – $15.2 million;
• Fiscal 2005 – $13.4 million; and
• Thereafter – $5.8 million. 

On October 14, 1998, AGL Resources entered into an
arrangement to sublease certain corporate office space, the
term of which began on December 1, 1998, and will expire
on January 3, 2003. The original lease is an operating
lease. Annual sublease rental receipts are as follows: 

• Fiscal 2001 – $1.5 million; 
• Fiscal 2002 – $1.5 million; and
• Fiscal 2003 – $0.4 million.

Litigation

AGL Resources is involved in litigation arising in the
normal course of business. (See Note 12. Environmental
Matters.) We believe the ultimate resolution of that
litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the
consolidated financial statements. 

Related Party Guarantees

In the normal course of business, AGL Resources
guarantees, or provides collateral for, the obligations 
of its subsidiaries and affiliates.

11 CAPITAL LEASES

Utilipro has seven capital leases principally for data
processing, telephone, and related switching equipment.
The expiration dates on these leases range from October
2000 to February 2003. The total capital lease liability
as of September 30, 2000, is $1.9 million of which $0.9
million is due within one year.

12 ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Before natural gas was widely available in the Southeast,
AGLC manufactured gas from coal and other fuels. Those
manufacturing operations were known as manufactured
gas plants (“MGP”), which AGLC ceased operating in
the 1950s. Because of recent environmental concerns,
AGLC is required to investigate possible environmental
contamination at those plants and, if necessary, clean
up any contamination. 
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AGLC has been associated with nine MGP sites in
Georgia and three in Florida. Based on investigations to
date, AGLC believes that some cleanup is likely at most of
the sites. In Georgia, the state Environmental Protection
Division supervises the investigation and cleanup of MGP
sites. In Florida, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
has that responsibility.

For each of the MGP sites, AGLC has estimated, where
possible, its share of the likely costs of investigation and
cleanup. AGLC currently estimates that its total future
cost of investigating and cleaning up its MGP sites is
between $111.7 million and $171.8 million. This estimate
does not include other potential expenses, such as
unasserted property damage or personal injury claims,
legal expenses or other costs for which AGLC may be
held liable, but with respect to which the amount cannot
be reasonably forecast. Within that range, AGLC cannot
identify any single number as a “better” estimate of its
likely future costs because its actual future investigation
and cleanup costs will be affected by a number of
contingencies that cannot be quantified at this time.
Consequently, as of September 30, 2000, AGLC has
recorded the lower end of the range, or $111.7 million,
as a liability.

AGLC has entered into a contract with ThermoRetec
Consulting Corporation (“ThermoRetec”) for management
of the investigation and cleanup of AGLC’s MGP sites.
Under this contract, AGLC’s former MGP sites are classified
into two categories. Where AGLC is not the primary
responsible party, ThermoRetec will provide management
oversight and coordination between AGLC and other
responsible parties. At all other sites, ThermoRetec will
provide all services that will eventually result in cleanup
and regulatory finality for those MGP sites within
specified deadlines. With respect to these latter sites,
the agreement between AGLC and ThermoRetec establishes
a performance-based fee arrangement, under which a
portion of ThermoRetec’s compensation is tied to the
relationship between certain specified components of the
cleanup costs and specified benchmarks for those cost
components. Management does not believe the outsourcing
of the management will have a material effect on the total
future cost of investigating and cleaning up the MGP sites. 

As of September 30, 1999, AGLC had recorded a
liability of $102.4 million. During fiscal 2000, the liability
increased $9.3 million due to revised estimates of future
costs, which resulted in a corresponding increase in the
unrecovered environmental response cost asset.

AGLC has two ways of recovering investigation and
cleanup costs. First, the GPSC has approved an
environmental response cost recovery rider. It allows
the recovery of costs of investigation, testing, cleanup,
and litigation. Because of that rider, AGLC has recorded
a regulatory asset for actual and projected future costs
related to investigation and cleanup, to be recovered
from the rate payers in future years. During fiscal 2000,
AGLC recovered $4.3 million through its environmental
response recovery rider.

The second way AGLC can recover costs is by exercising
the legal rights AGLC believes it has to recover a share of
its costs from other potentially responsible parties, typically
former owners or operators of the MGP sites. AGLC has
been actively pursuing those recoveries. There were no
material recoveries during fiscal 2000, 1999, and 1998.

13 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In the following table, the carrying amounts and fair values
of financial instruments included in AGL Resources’
Consolidated Balance Sheets, as of September 30:

Carrying Estimated 
(In Millions) Amount Fair Value 

2000

Long-term debt including 
current portion $610.0 $577.2

Capital Securities $ 74.3 $ 65.6

1999

Long-term debt including 
current portion $660.0 $640.8

Capital Securities $ 74.3 $ 70.0

The estimated fair values are determined based on
the following: 

• Long-term Debt – interest rates that are currently
available for issuance of debt with similar terms
and remaining maturities. 

• Capital Securities – quoted market price and dividend
rates for preferred stock with similar terms. 
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Considerable judgment is required to develop the fair
value estimates; therefore, the values are not necessarily
indicative of the amounts that could be realized in a
current market exchange. The fair value estimates are
based on information available to management as of
September 30, 2000. Management is not aware of any
subsequent factors that would affect significantly the
estimated fair value amounts. 

14 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The utility recognized revenue totaling $173.6 million in
fiscal 2000 for SouthStar, and had $5.5 million in accounts
receivable from SouthStar as of September 30, 2000. The
utility sold gas totaling $5.6 million in fiscal 1999 to
SouthStar, and had $0.7 million in accounts receivable from
SouthStar as of September 30, 1999. The utility recognized
revenue of $70.7 million in fiscal 1999 related to the
assignment of underground storage inventory to SouthStar.

Utilipro recognized revenue of $10.9 million on
services provided to SouthStar during fiscal 2000, and
had accounts receivable from SouthStar of $5.8 million
as of September 30, 2000. Utilipro recognized revenue
of $6.5 million on services provided to SouthStar during
fiscal 1999, and had $2.7 million in accounts receivable
from SouthStar as of September 30, 1999. 

AGL Resources’ investment in SouthStar has a
significant impact on AGL Resources’ financial position
and results of operations for fiscal 2000 and fiscal 1999.
Summarized financial information for SouthStar at
September 30 is shown below in millions:

2000 1999

Total assets $149.5 $ 62.9
Total liabilities $152.7 $ 77.6

For twelve months ended September 30,

Income (loss) before tax $ 12.6 $(28.5)

15 SEGMENT INFORMATION

AGL Resources is organized into two operating segments:
Utility and Non-utility. Management evaluates segment
performance based on net income, which includes the
effects of corporate expense allocations. There were no

material intersegment sales in fiscal 2000, 1999, and 1998.
Identifiable assets are those assets used in each segment’s

operations. Corporate assets consist primarily of cash and
cash equivalents and property, plant and equipment.

Equity in the
Depreciation Net Income Income Tax Investments 

Operating and Interest Interest (Loss) of Expense Net Income Identifiable in Joint Capital 
(Dollars in Millions) Revenues Amortization Expense Income Investees (Benefit) (Loss) Assets Ventures Expenditures

Fiscal 2000
Utility $ 571.9 $71.0 $45.2 $0.4 $ – $39.0 $68.6 $1,866.3 $ 0.4 $145.7
Non-utility 35.5 12.2 6.4 0.2 9.3 (1.8) 2.5 74.8 78.4 12.1

$ 607.4 $83.2 $51.6 $0.6 $ 9.3 $37.2 $71.1 $1,941.1 $78.8 $157.8
Fiscal 1999

Utility $1,041.3 $66.6 $47.9 $ – $ – $37.8 $71.9 $1,799.7 $ 0.4 $128.7
Non-utility 29.4 12.2 5.1 0.4 (19.9) 1.3 2.5 142.5 27.8 18.6

$1,070.7 $78.8 $53.0 $0.4 $(19.9) $39.1 $74.4 $1,942.2 $28.2 $147.3
Fiscal 1998
Utility $1,276.3 $62.9 $53.0 $1.0 $ – $44.2 $87.9 $1,838.9 $ 0.4 $ 96.7
Non-utility 63.8 8.2 1.4 0.2 4.6 (5.4) (7.3) 99.7 46.3 22.5

$1,340.1 $71.1 $54.4 $1.2 $ 4.6 $38.8 $80.6 $1,938.6 $46.7 $119.2
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16 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Effective with the closing of the VNG acquisition in
October 2000, and in accordance with PUHCA, AGL
Resources formed a service company, AGL Services
Company (“AGSC”). AGSC was formed in order to provide
shared services to the subsidiaries of AGL Resources. 

17 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 1999, AGL Resources
sold its interests in Sonat Power Marketing and Sonat
Marketing for a total after-tax gain of $22.3 million.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, AGL Resources
recognized a total after-tax gain of $10.7 million related
to the propane transaction and recorded an after-tax charge
of $3.9 million related to the corporate reorganization.

Quarterly financial data for fiscal 2000 and 1999 is
summarized as follows: 

(Dollars in Millions, Operating Operating 
except per share data) Revenues Income 

Fiscal 2000

December 31, 1999 $182.3 $33.5
March 31, 2000 160.1 37.5
June 30, 2000 131.8 38.4
September 30, 2000 133.2 28.4

Fiscal 1999

December 31, 1998 $324.4 $47.7
March 31, 1999 375.6 52.4
June 30, 1999 186.4 29.5
September 30, 1999 184.3 25.0

Basic Diluted 
Earnings Per Earnings Per

Net Common Common 
Income(a) Share(a) Share(a)

Fiscal 2000

December 31, 1999 $17.1 $ .30 $ .30 
March 31, 2000 22.7 .41 .41 
June 30, 2000 13.9 .26 .26 
September 30, 2000 17.4 .32 .32

Fiscal 1999

December 31, 1998 $15.9 $ .28 $ .28 
March 31, 1999 24.2 .42 .42 
June 30, 1999 7.2 .12 .12 
September 30, 1999 27.1 .48 .48

(a) The wide variance in quarterly earnings results from the highly
seasonal nature of AGL Resources’ primary business. 

Basic and diluted earnings per common share are
calculated based on the weighted average number of
common shares and common share equivalents
outstanding during the quarter. Those totals differ from
the basic and diluted earnings per share, as shown on
the Statements of Consolidated Income, which are based
on the weighted average number of common shares and
common share equivalents outstanding during the
entire year. 
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To the Shareholders and 
Board of Directors of AGL Resources Inc.: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of AGL Resources Inc. and subsidiaries as of
September 30, 2000 and 1999, and the related statements
of consolidated income, common stockholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended September 30, 2000. These financial statements
are the responsibility of AGL Resources’ management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and 

significant estimates made by management as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such consolidated financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of AGL Resources Inc. and
subsidiaries as of September 30, 2000 and 1999, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended September 30,
2000, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Atlanta, Georgia 
October 25, 2000
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The consolidated financial statements and related
information are the responsibility of management. The
financial statements have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and appropriate in the
circumstances. The financial information contained
elsewhere in this Annual Report is consistent with that in
the financial statements. 

AGL Resources maintains a system of internal
accounting controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded from loss and that
transactions are executed and recorded in accordance
with established procedures. The concept of reasonable
assurance is based on the recognition that the cost of
maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
should not exceed related benefits. The system of
internal accounting controls is supported by written
policies and guidelines. 

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte
& Touche LLP, independent auditors. Their audits were
made in accordance with generally accepted auditing

standards of the United States of America, as indicated
in the Independent Auditors’ Report, and included a
review of the system of internal accounting controls
and tests of transactions to the extent they considered
necessary to carry out their responsibilities. 

The Board of Directors pursues its responsibility 
for reported financial information through its Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee meets periodically
with management and the independent auditors to
assure that they are carrying out their responsibilities
and to discuss internal accounting controls, auditing
and financial reporting matters. 

Paula G. Rosput Donald P. Weinstein
President and Senior Vice President and 
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
October 25, 2000 October 25, 2000
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CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
AGL Resources Inc.
817 West Peachtree Street, 10th Floor
Atlanta, GA 30308
404-584-9470
Web site: www.aglresources.com

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
EquiServe serves as AGL Resources’ transfer agent and registrar
and can help with a variety of stock-related matters including:

• Name and address changes
• Transfer of ownership
• Lost certificates
• Form 1099s

Inquiries may be directed to:
AGL Resources Shareholder Services
c/o EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
Blue Hills Office Park
150 Royall Street
Canton, MA  02021
Toll-free telephone: 1-800-633-4236
Internet: www.equiserve.com

INFORMATION SOURCES
AGL Resources’ Annual Report, Proxy Statement, Form 10-K
and Form 10-Q reports are available at no charge to you upon
written request to:

Shareholder Relations, location 1080
AGL Resources Inc.
P.O. Box 4569
Atlanta, GA 30302-4569

In addition, financial reports, news releases, and other
information are available on our web site at www.aglresources.com
or through our toll-free interactive shareholder information line
at 1-877-ATG-NYSE (1-877-284-6973).

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Security analysts, investment managers and other members of the
financial community seeking additional information about the
company are invited to contact: Melanie M. Platt at 404-584-3420
or Joe Heffron at 404-584-3427.

COMMON STOCK INFORMATION
• Ticker symbol: ATG
• Newspaper listing: AGL Res
• Listed and traded: New York Stock Exchange
• Shareholders of record at year end: 14,517 in 50 states, the

District of Columbia and 15 foreign countries

2001 ANNUAL MEETING
The annual shareholders’ meeting will be:
January 26, 2001
The Biltmore
817 West Peachtree Street
Atlanta, GA

RESOURCESDIRECT
New investors may make an initial investment, and stockholders of
record may acquire additional shares of AGL Resources’ common
stock through “ResourcesDirect,” without paying any brokerage
fees or service charges. Subject to certain requirements, initial
cash investments, quarterly cash dividends and/or optional cash
purchases may be invested through the plan.

To obtain a copy of our plan prospectus and enrollment
application:

• Telephone our transfer agent toll-free at 1-800-633-4236
• Telephone our interactive shareholder line at 

1-877-284-6973
• Visit our web site – www.aglresources.com

MARKET PRICES AND DIVIDENDS
Closing Price of Cash Dividends

FY 2000 Common Stock Per Common Share

Quarter Ended: High Low
December 31, 1999 $19.13 $16.06 $0.27
March 31, 2000 18.38 16.31 0.27
June 30, 2000 18.13 15.75 0.27
September 30, 2000 20.31 16.75 0.27

Closing Price of Cash Dividends
FY 1999 Common Stock Per Common Share

Quarter Ended: High Low
December 31, 1998 $23.19 $19.31 $0.27
March 31, 1999 23.06 17.56 0.27
June 30, 1999 19.25 16.94 0.27
September 30, 1999 20.56 15.94 0.27

AGL Resources normally pays dividends four times a year, on March 1, June 1,
September 1 and December 1. The company has paid 211 consecutive quarterly
dividends, beginning in 1948.
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Company Profile

Natural Gas Distribution
Natural gas distribution is AGL Resources’ principal line
of business. Through its gas distribution subsidiaries, AGL
Resources is recognized as the second largest natural
gas-only distributor in the United States. Together, these
companies serve more than 1.8 million customers and
boast customer growth rates that are among the highest
in the industry.

Atlanta Gas Light Company (“AGLC”) and Chattanooga
Gas Company provide natural gas delivery service to more
than 1.5 million homes and businesses throughout
Georgia and Tennessee.

In October 2000, AGL Resources acquired Virginia
Natural Gas (“VNG”), which serves more than 230,000
customers and is headquartered in Norfolk, Virginia.
With its service territory in the economically vibrant
Hampton Roads region of Virginia, VNG is among
the industry leaders in customer growth at more than
4 percent per year.

Telecommunications
AGL Networks was formed to leverage our experience
in managing underground infrastructure to install
conduit and fiber optic cable for communication 
network companies.

Retail Energy Marketing
Through SouthStar Energy Services, AGL Resources 
is a joint venture partner with Piedmont Natural Gas
Company and Dynegy Holdings, Inc. SouthStar offers
retail energy products and services to more than 500,000
customers in Georgia and 500 industrial customers
throughout the Southeast. SouthStar operates in Georgia
under the trade name of Georgia Natural Gas Services.

Propane
AGL Resources is a partner in Heritage Propane, the
fourth largest propane distributor serving more than
480,000 customers in 28 states.

Customer Care
Utilipro provides outsourced customer care services
(billing, call center, payment processing) to energy
marketing companies.

We Serve Over 1.8 Million Natural Gas Distribution Customers

Our Service Areas

Atlanta

Chattanooga NC

SC

GA

AL

TN

VA

Norfolk

Acquired Virginia Natural Gas

A G L  R e s o u r c e s

Table of Contents 

A G L  R e s o u r c e s

Financial Highlights

We’re Rewriting The Book 1 Letter To Shareholders 12 Financial Review 17
Shareholder Information 68 Directors and Officers Inside back cover

(In Millions, except per share amounts)

Core Earnings
(Net income excluding one-time items)

Operation & Maintenance Expenses

Net Income Reported 

Dividends Paid Per Share

Closing Market Price

Shares Outstanding

Average

End of Year

$ 68.6

$ 247.8

$ 71.1

$ 1.08

$ 20.06

55.2

54.0

$ 52.1

$ 268.2

$ 74.4

$ 1.08

$ 16.25

57.4

57.1

2000
1999

(In Millions, except per share amounts)


